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Management Discussion
BEEENWE DN

The year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Year 2008”) is a
year of change for Fortuna International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
The financial tsunami in the second half of the Year 2008
negatively affected the Group. Nevertheless the Group also
sees opportunities in such macro environment. The board
of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the Company
believes it is an opportune moment to acquire new business

for expansion.

APPOINTMENT OF NEW MANAGEMENT AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In order to meet the challenges ahead, the Group had
undergone changes in its business strategy, management
as well as its shareholders in the end of the Year 2008.
The new management was appointed in December 2008,
and subsequently it appointed a new independent auditor,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to provide the Group with a
diverse professional service capability. The auditor has audited
the financial statements for the Year 2008 and issued an
independent auditor’s report with a disclaimer of opinion on
the basis as set out in the basis for current year’s disclaimer
of opinion paragraph of the independent auditor’s report. The
disclaimer was made in respect of the cruise and cruise-related
operation under the previous management disposed of during
this year, and the auditor was not able to perform sufficient
audit procedures, including obtaining explanations from the
management of the cruise and cruise-related operation, on
which the auditor can rely on for the purpose of the audit.
The new management is committed to make every effort to
prevent similar incidents in future.

The new management recognises the importance of the
transparency of the Group in disclosure of the financial
statements, compliance to accounting standards and all
relevant regulations, in boosting confidence of shareholders
and potential investors in the Group.

and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations for the
Year 2008 was approximately HK$15.4 million, representing
approximately 13.0% decrease from last year (2007: HK$17.7
million). The Group’s net loss attributable to the equity holders
was approximately HK$147.5 million (2007: HK$35.5 million),
which was mainly attributable to the cruise liner operation.

The principal activities of the Group have been restructured.
During the first half of the Year 2008, the Group gradually
trimmed down its glass eel trading, while focusing its resources
to boost the sales of the cruise liner operation. However, the
cruise liner operation showed no improvement and therefore
the Group decided to dispose it in the second half of the
Year 2008. The restaurant operation and property investment
remain as the core business after restructuring.

The restaurant operation continued to provide a stable
income for the Group. Despite a drop in the turnover of
approximately 14.6% as compared to last year, the Group
was able to control the costs of the restaurant operation and
managed to break even. The segment loss was approximately
HK$2.3 million, representing approximately 69.8% decrease
from last year (2007: HK$7.6 million). The Year 2008 was
a tough year for the restaurant operation even though the
Olympics in August 2008 were able to boost the turnover
slightly for a few months. The overall performance of the
restaurant operation was weak and it was not as profitable
as the Directors were expecting for the Year 2008, despite
the upbeat local business environment with buoyant spending
sentiment driven by surging stock and property markets. The
Directors believed that the weak performance was mainly
due to the fact that the spending of each household on
fine dining was tightened due to the economic turmoil in
the second half of the Year 2008. Amid this gloomy world
economic outlook and declining spending power of the
locals, the Directors believe the coming year would also be
a difficult one in business terms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Property investment

The turnover of this segment for the Year 2008 was contributed
by rental income. The increase in turnover of 16.6% was due
to the favourable property market in Hong Kong during the
first half of the Year 2008. The segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$0.7 million (2007: profit of HK$2.3 million),
representing approximately 130.4% decrease from last year
due to revaluation loss on properties for the Year 2008. The
Directors had been actively seeking good investment in the
property market with a view to broaden the Group’s property
portfolio. However, in the third quarter of the Year 2008,
the Directors tightened the Group’s budget for property

investment in view of the gloomy economy.

There was no property sale during the Year 2008. The year
ahead is likely to remain challenging for the global and local
economy in light of the continuing credit crunch, which

would adversely affect our property investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The Directors considered that the turnover of the operation
was stable under the Group’s management. However, the
segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$139.6 million
(2007: HK$28.1 million), representing approximately 396.8%
increase from last year due to the high operating costs and
the continuous increase in the price of bunker oil. Looking
at the increasing competition posed by the booming casino
business in Macau, the management had been focusing
on strengthening the marketing strategy. The Group had
planned a series of marketing campaigns in Hong Kong and
overseas until the Directors were given an opportunity to
dispose the cruise liner operation to an independent third
party in July 2008. On 11 July 2008, the Group entered into
an agreement with an independent third party to dispose
Quick Treasure Investments Limited, the details of which
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 4 August
2008. The shareholders of the Company approved the
disposal in August 2008 and the disposal was completed in
October 2008. Despite the Group had put effort in running
the business, the Directors considered it would be more
beneficial to the Group as a whole to dispose the operation
under this unclear economic outlook
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERBNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Glass eel trading business - discontinued operation

In March 2008, the Group had gradually trimmed down
its glass eel trading business. The Directors considered
that the cessation of the glass eel trading was beneficial
to the Group as the business environment of the glass eel
trading had become more and more difficult. Despite the
segment profits of approximately HK$4.3 million increased
by 48.3% as compared to last year (2007: HK$2.9 million),
the business had been utilizing a substantial amount of
cash flow, leaving limited resources for the growth of the
other business of the Group. As the European eels has been
classified as endangered species, the Directors anticipated
that the supply of glass eel would decrease in the future
and more stringent licensing control was expected to be
enacted in the year 2009, the costs of running the business

would therefore increase.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 October 2008, 3,060,409,095 ordinary shares (“Offer
Shares”) of HK$0.02 each at par were issued and allotted
by way of an open offer to the shareholders of the Company
to raise the net proceeds of approximately HK$58.61 million
which was used as general working capital for the Group
and intended to be used as future investment.

The Offer Shares rank pari passu in all respects with the
then existing shares of the Company. The share issuing
expenses of approximately HK$2.4 million was charged to
share premium account for the year ended 31 December
2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

Following the change in the controlling shareholder of the
Company and the completion of the mandatory unconditional
cash offer in December 2008, the Group appointed a new
team of management in the same month. The Directors
are expecting 2009 to be a year of breakthrough for the
Group thanks to a new team of management and new lines

of business.

The new management will continue the Group’s strategy
of expanding its business and income diversification by
seeking new investments for the Group through mergers &
acquisitions. In February 2009, the Group announced the
proposed right issues in order to strengthen the Group’s
cash position for future business development. In March
2009, the Group announced venturing into factoring business
with two renowned financial institutions as its strategic
partners. It is planned that the Group will participate as a
non-banking factoring company providing factoring services
to middle to small size companies in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), through which the
Group will be entitled to receive commission based on the
sales volume. At the same time, the Group announced the
change of company name to Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited to better reflect the development focus of the Group’s
business. The Directors are confident in turning crisis into
opportunities to deliver the results our shareholders have

expected of us.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$10.4 million (2007: HK$29.2 million)
and had net assets of approximately HK$85.8 million (2007:
HK$174.5 million).

At the year ended 2008, the Group’s gearing ratio was nil
(2007: nil) (calculated on the basis of total bank and other
borrowings over shareholders’ fund). As at 31 December
2008, the Group had no interest-bearing loans (2007: nil).

The Group’s core operation was in Hong Kong and had
limited exposure to the fluctuations in exchange rates,
bank balances and borrowings were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Contingent liability
The Group did not have any significant contingent liability
at the balance sheet date.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has 40 employees
(2007: 355). Total staff costs were approximately HK$24.9
million (2007: HK$19.6 million). Employee remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
performance and experience. Staff benefits include
contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
share option scheme, medical allowances and other fringe
benefits.
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Report of the Directors

EECHTE

The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2008
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
39 to 118.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any

dividend in respect of the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial
years is set out on page 120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company did not have any reserve available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2008 as computed in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). The Company’s share premium account as at
31 December 2008 is HK$83,950,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Mr. Pan Sutong (appointed on 24 December 2008)
Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Zhixiong ppointed on 24 December 2008
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Du Peng

Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Mr. Wong Ching Ping, Alex

Mr. Wong Tak Chung, Andrew (resigned on 29 December 2008)

(@ )
(appointed on 24 December 2008)
(appointed on 24 December 2008)
(appointed on 24 December 2008)
(resigned on 29 December 2008)

(
Non-executive Directors
Professor Huang Xiaojian
Ms. Hou Qin

(appointed on 24 December 2008)
(appointed on 24 December 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

In accordance with Bye-laws 91 and 99(B) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Pan Sutong, Mr. Wang Zhixiong, Mr. Wong Han
Yan, Helvin, Mr. Du Peng, Mr. Zhou Dengchao, Professor
Huang Xiaojian, Ms. Hou Qin and Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Director, including the independent
non-executive Directors, is for a period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of
the Company.

The Company had received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”). The Company was
of the view that all the independent non-executive Directors
met the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the directors and chief executive
of the Company had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of
the Company:

EERITRAEBZESER
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Number of Percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares held holdings
BEEpnE EHEME FEEBRREE FrEaE 2t
Pan Sutong Interest of controlled 2,446,955,215 66.63%
EER corporations (Nete () (Note (i)
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Notes: PisE -

(i) These shares were held by Goldin Global Holdings Limited which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan Sutong.

(i) The percentage of interest in the issued share capital was calculated
on the basis of 3,672,490,914 shares of the Company in issue at 31
December 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none
of the directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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Global Holdings LimitediF A

(ii) REBTRAZEZBES L DHEARARAR
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3,672,490,914f8 7 H 5+ 4 -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

According to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 28 January 2004, share options may be granted
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants to
subscribe for shares. During the year, no share options was
granted to any Director and no Director has any outstanding
interest in any share options. No share options was exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement whose objects
were to enable the Director or his respective spouse or
minor children to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares of the Company or any other body corporate, or
were any such rights exercised by them.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the following persons (other
than any directors or chief executive of the Company) were
substantial shareholders of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of

the SFO:

FTERRRAEMALZESER

RZZENF+ZA=+—H  THRAT(ER
RIZEMESHITRABRIN BARR(EE
RETRIDZEERR  EARAI 2B KD &KAE
RN PR RN R IE B A R B KHI5£336
BAFHFE 2Bz ERSS AR

Number of shares

Percentage
to the issued

Nature interested or deemed share capital
Name of shareholders of interest to be interested of the Company
BERBERD LR NN
BEEERZ EEITRAK
IRIR & B EEME R EE ZBATHK
(Note (i)) (Note (i)
(GET) (BEE ()
Goldin Global Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,446,955,215 66.63%
EnEAA
Goldin Investment Holdings Interest of controlled 2,446,955,215 66.63%
Limited corporation
REHEE R
Goldin Real Estate Financial Interest of controlled 2,446,955,215 66.63%
Holdings Limited corporations
SR RNEZERER QA REHEEER
Pan Sutong Interest of controlled 2,446,955,215 66.63%
EER B corporations
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Notes:

(i

Goldin Global Holdings Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary and
hence a controlled corporation of Goldin Investment Holdings Limited
(“Goldin Investment”). Goldin Investment is a wholly owned subsidiary
and hence a controlled corporation of Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”). Goldin Real Estate
Financial is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan Sutong, a
non-executive director of the Company and the chairman of the
Board whose interests in the shares of the Company are disclosed
in the paragraph entitled “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
in Securities” above. By virtue of the SFO, both Goldin Real Estate
Financial and Goldin Investment were deemed to be interested in the
same lot of 2,446,955,215 shares held by Goldin Global Holdings
Limited in the Company as at 31 December 2008.

The percentage of interest in the issued share capital was calculated
on the basis of 3,672,490,914 shares of the Company in issue at 31
December 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the

Company had not been notified of any other persons (other

than any directors or chief executive of the Company) who

had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

GER

(i) Goldin Global Holdings Limited&Goldin
Investment Holdings Limited ([ Goldin
Investment]) 22 &M B AR MM AZARZ
Z P Hl3% E o Goldin Investment4 & R £ &b i
EERBERAR(SRemME N Z22EREB
NE MM REZARZEZEGEE - sReEt
ETBAARRFRTESFRESTS IR EHFBE
F2EERRER MARAKRARTRGO z2EZNE
X EEFRITBRABERES 2= | —BREE -
BEIFLBEKRHA R E
KGoldin Investmentd # #% & M Goldin Global
Holdings Limited A =ZZENF+_A=+—HFF
HBHEARR 22,446,955, 215D P B R ©

(i) REBETRAZEZBE AL DIEARARFR
—EENF+ A=+ -—BZEEBETR®H
3,672,490,9140% 2 HEHH -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 68% of the Group’s total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amount to 46%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 64% of the Group'’s total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included

therein amounted to 31%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transactions that was not exempted
under rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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31% °

EEARSFEMBBALHEARR(REES
PrRA > BEARNRAICETRABBS%E )}
BRASERERATPMHEBTHEEEM

£ 1ae

T o

2
N

i

\

HERXS

MAREER » AEERTE ETHRRIE14A.31
FERZBERS

BA - HEREEXQAFZ LHESF
ARFHEACMMBARFABEBA - HE

KB R AQBER EHRES

RERKSEE

MEHRZEAFRZFABHENYBHRRME
33 °



Report of the Directors

EEERS

The Company is committed to maintain the high standard ZAAFBNEFSKEZLEERAER - AR
of corporate governance practices. Information on the FRIRMZEEEAFTRIERINAFRE24
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company EBEZEZHEI3HEZPEEBMEN o

are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages

24 to 383 of this annual report.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and REARGABE 2 2ARERNRBEZESHA - ©
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this ZANF¥FHRBAH - AR Al —H#&F EMHEBAR A
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed ZARFRE °

public float under the Listing Rules.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting HEAARREBEFARAE LR RFRANER
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche X S:tAEE ¢ MEMR T STMITALRRF
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountant as an auditor of the — #Z&fD o

Company.

On behalf of the Board REEEE

Fortuna International Holdings Limited EZEBREEERA T

Pan Sutong FE

Chairman BB

Hong Kong, 12 March 2009 &8 ZEEhF=A+=H
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 46, was appointed a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board in December 2008.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Pan has over 21 years of experience in trading
and manufacturing of electronic products in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the United States of America. He also has
profound experience in finance and property development.
Mr. Pan is also the chairman and chief executive officer of
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (“Goldin Properties”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and is responsible

for its overall strategic planning.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhixiong, aged 40, was appointed an executive
Director of the Company in December 2008. He is responsible
for the property investments of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated
from the Shenzhen University and obtained the degree of
Bachelor of Economics with a major in International Finance.
He has over 18 years of experience in banking and finance
industry and is familiar with the real estate industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a general manager in
the Tianjin branch office of Goldin Properties. Prior to this
engagement, he held various positions in different branch
offices and sub-branch offices of Bank of China for over
17 years.
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Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 35, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company in December 2008. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wong is a general counsel of the Company and responsible
for overseeing the Group’s legal and corporate matters.
Mr. Wong holds the degree of Bachelor of Laws from The
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom
and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and in England
and Wales. Mr. Wong is currently the general counsel of
Goldin Properties and a director of a number of subsidiaries
of Goldin Properties. Prior to joining Goldin Properties,
Mr. Wong was a special counsel of an international law
firm specializing in real estate mergers and acquisitions,
corporate joint ventures and public corporate compliance
matters. He is a Lay Observer of the Independent Police
Complaints Council.

Mr. Du Peng, aged 32, was appointed an executive Director
of the Company in December 2008. He is responsible for the
financial management of the Group. Mr. Du graduated from
Shenzhen University with a major in accountancy. Mr. Du has
over 8 years of experience in financial and banking industry
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he has worked in the
group of Goldin Properties and China Everbright Bank.

Mr. Zhou Dengchao, aged 34, was appointed an executive
Director of the Company in December 2008. He is responsible
for the general operation of the Group. Mr. Zhou graduated
from Wuhan University of Technology with a major in
accountancy. Mr. Zhou has over 10 years of experience
in financial management. Before joining the Group, he has
worked in the group of Goldin Properties.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 47, was appointed a non-
executive Director of the Company in December 2008. He
has over 22 years of experience in research and development
of electronic and digital technologies. Professor Huang was
a senior member of an Electronic Association in China. He
had worked in different research organizations in the PRC.
Professor Huang is an executive director of Goldin Properties.
Before joining the group of Goldin Properties, he was a

professor of University of Posts and Telecommunications.

Ms. Hou Qin, aged 30, was appointed a non-executive
Director of the Company in December 2008. She furthered
her study in Jinan University with a major in financial
management following her graduation from a professional
college in Guangdong province. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Hou was responsible for the financial management for
the group of Goldin Properties from 1996 to 2008. She got
extensive experience in financial management and electronics
industry in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco, aged 44, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in July
2003. He is also the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company and the member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Tso is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong
since 1990. He is a consultant with Tso Au Yim & Yeung,
Solicitors. He graduated from King’s College London in the
United Kingdom in 1987. Mr. Tso is also an independent
non-executive director of Rising Development Holdings
Limited and Neolink Cyber Technology (Holding) Limited,
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 41,

independent non-executive Director of the Company in

was appointed an

June 2006. She is also a member of audit committee of the
Company and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Hui is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. She has over
21 years of professional experience in public accounting and
corporate finance. She is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Hui is a non-executive director and the
chairman of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Freeman Corporation Limited,
New Media Group Holdings Limited and Mascotte Holdings
Limited which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, aged 42, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in September 2006.
He is also the Chairman of the remuneration committee of
the Company and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Tang is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong.
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong and
a Master’s Degree in Laws from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong and
is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England
and Wales and a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Tasmania.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board periodically reviews the
corporate governance practices of the Company to ensure
that the practices continue to meet the requirements of the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of
the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, except for
deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. None of the existing non-executive directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company. The Board
believes that such practice will offer stability at the Board
level while at the same time, independence is safeguarded by
the necessary rotation, retirement and re-election procedures
which involves shareholders’ approval. As such, the Board
considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ and relevant
employees’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all the directors of the Company, all the directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings set out in the Model Code during the year.
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The Board currently comprises four executive directors,
three non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, serving the important function of guiding
the management.

The Board members up to the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Mr. Pan Sutong

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhixiong

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Du Peng

Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Non-executive Directors
Professor Huang Xiaojian
Ms. Hou Qin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

The details biographies of the directors are set out in
“Biographies of Directors” section of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Twelve Board meetings, two audit committee meetings and
one remuneration committee meeting were held during the
year. The following tables summarizes the attendance of
individual director and committee member during the year
ended 31 December 2008:

BEE(H)
ERRAATEETIoREESEE MK
ERZEeEER—AFMESEEE T &
B EREEREEERERBE-_STN\F
+-A=+—BUHFEZHERBR

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BITEEZIRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
= EEg EREEY FHEEE
Executive Directors HITESE
Wong Ching Ping, Alex Nete ! T IE 11/12 - -
Wong Tak Chung, Andrew Nete! T 13 R 9/12 - -
Wang Zhixiong Nt 2 E g - - -
Wong Hau Yan, Helvin Nete 2 = F M - - -
Du peng Note 2 7&5}1%%%12 _ _ —
Zhou Dengchao Note2 JE B e - - -
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Pan Sutong Nete ® v B s - - -
Huang Xiaojian Nete 4 mE - - -
Hou Qin Note 4 {;gwsﬂ _ _ —
Independent non-executive Directors B EHTES
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco wEE 6/12 2/2 1/1
Hui Wai Man, Shirley FEE 7/12 2/2 1/1
Tang Yiu Wing B 58 6/12 1/2 0/1
Notes: MieE -
1. Resigned as executive Directors with effect from 29 December 1. BERTES B_TTN\EF+_A=+BE

2008. HER o
2. Appointed as executive Directors with effect from 24 December 2. BEEANTEE AT\ FF+-A=+T
2008. BERR -

3. Appointed as non-executive Directors and chairman of the Board 3. BEEZTRINTEEFREEFSEHE  H_ZEZTN

with effect from 24 December 2008.

4. Appointed as non-executive Directors with effect from 24 December
2008.

F+ZAZt+MmBRAENR -
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The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner. It formulates
overall directions and strategies of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. Specific Board committees are set up
with delegated powers and clear terms of reference. Daily
operation and administration are led by all the executive
directors collectively. Matters reserved to the Board are
those affecting the Company’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders. The Board is also responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable of the
financial and other information contained in the Company’s

accounts and have an effective internal control system.

The independent non-executive directors are high calibre
professionals with diversified industry expertise to discharge
directors’ duties and safeguarding the interests of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. Each independent non-
executive directors has confirmed that he/she has satisfied
the criteria of independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the directors has assessed and affirmed
their independence.

The Board is collectively responsible for the nomination
and selection of a Director. Proposed new Directors are
selected based on skills and experience that will enable
them to make positive contribution to the performance of
the Board. The Board also reviews its structure, size and
composition regularly to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills and experience for providing effective leadership
to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Pan Sutong is the Chairman of the Board and has
assumed the responsibility to manage the Board, ensuring
all directors receive adequate information in a timely manner
and properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer
and therefore the daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive directors as well as
the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to time

to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was established
on 7 July 2005 with specific written terms of reference. In
the Year 2008, a meeting was held to review the director’s
fee, the attendance of which was set out on page 26 of this
annual report. The remuneration committee of the Company
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing (Chairman), Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco and
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley.

The major roles and functions of the remuneration committee
of the Company are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration.
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2. to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive Directors.

3. to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

4. to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office

or appointment.

5. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct.

6. to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28
January 2004, which serves as an incentive to attract, retain
and motivate talented eligible staff, including the directors.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 24
to the financial statements. The structure of the emolument
payable to executive directors comprises basic salary and
pension. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established on
27 September 2004 with specific written terms of reference.
The committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco (Chairman), Ms.
Hui Wai Man, Shirley and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing. None of the
audit committee members are or have ever been a partner
of the existing audit firm engaged by the Company.

The Audit Committee had convened two meetings in the
Year 2008, the attendance of which is set out on page 26

of this annual report.

The major roles and functions of the audit committee of the

Company are as follows:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor; to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor; and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that external
auditor.

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard.

3. to develop and implement policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services.

4. to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board.

5. to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters

the auditors may wish to discuss.
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6. to review the external auditor’'s management letters
and management’s response.

7. to review the Group’s internal control system.

8. to consider the major findings of internal investigations
and management’s response.

During the year, the audit committee had reviewed the
annual and interim reports of the Company; reviewed
the recommendation from the external auditor; approved
external auditor to perform non-audit services; reviewed the
independence of the external auditor; reviewed the terms
of reference of audit committee; and reviewed the internal
control system.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts of each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
have applied them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, which also include
the Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations,
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts
on the going concern basis.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the total fees paid/
payable in respect of services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) and CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF CPA”),
the Group’s external auditors are set out below:

BB B &=

REBE-_FTZNFT_A=+—RHLFE 3
AEBEBZIERBMEE « BEKRT S0
TR DERESSHAMELAAER QA
(TREBSHMEBADARERBEN &
HZ%?%%E%’E@J%MDT :

Services rendered Deloitte CCIF CPA
PR it PR 7% Z5 RESSTMEKAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Annual audit services 1,300 -
FREBEZRYE
Other advisory services - 130
E g8 S AR 75
INTERNAL CONTROL A B B 2

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard
the assets of the Company, maintaining proper accounting
records, execution with appropriate authority and compliance
of the relevant laws and regulations.

The management has carried out an annual review of
the implemented system and procedures, including areas
covered accounting, business and legal compliance. The
scope of review was discussed with and agreed by the audit
committee of the Company. An internal control report of the
Company has been reported to the Board. In addition to
the annual review, the management will conduct any special

review as required.
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The Board is responsible for the system of internal control
and reviewing its effectiveness. For the year under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control
system is adequate and effective and the Company has
complied with the code provisions on internal control of
the CG Code.

The Company appointed a chief financial officer, who has
the professional accounting qualification, to oversee the
financial management of the Group. The Board ensures that
the Company has sufficient resources and professional staff
for the accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company communicated with the shareholders by the
following modes of communication: (1) convening annual
general meeting and special general meeting; and (2)
providing information on the Company’s performance and
activities in the annual and interim reports. In addition to the
annual general meeting, the Company has held two special
general meetings in 2008. During the general meetings, each
substantial separate issues was proposed by a separate
resolution. The rights of shareholders to demand a poll
were disclosed in all circulars sent to the shareholders
and the procedures for demanding a poll by shareholders
were explained at the commencement of the meeting. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings
of the Company.

The Board is committed to providing business information
of the Company to the investors through timely publication
of interim and annual results and reports. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available for download from the

Company’s website.

E=ZgRRAENNEREAR  YRITEZEEE

ﬂo%@@iﬁm'%$2%3$ alm AR
ZERMOCADRAER MARBABEFADL

%ﬁﬁ?%ﬁ@W%WTW#WﬂY

ARFCREAREXSHERZMBRE
BEEBAREECHMBER -ESG®RRAR
RIBERHABRIBEXETRIE ST K HE R
H’Eﬂzﬁz °

AABATIEBEXNEBRRER : (NARK
RBFXREMBRRFIAE  RRQEFERS
LR EREABARARALNEEKEZHHN
BR - RBRRBEFAGIN  ARFAR_FFEN
FERTMABRBHARE - RERKRE L
ERBHRERBYNFTEEIELRER - 1
FREARRRBRRBEHA  ERERRERMN
BEAARRNEN  TEEZHRBCHE
BRERUBREDARRNERF - ARFEE
ERBREFARBZBERAE -

EFEeARBBERATZTHREFREZES
EfE RAREERFEERARAZEBE
e KRBz Y BREMHRE BEREA
W& HERARRZ BT -

EHBEBEEBRARAQA 33
—EENEER



34

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF FORTUNA INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorproated in Bermuda with limited liabilitiy)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Fortuna International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 118, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008,
and consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement. However, because of the
matter described in the basis for current year’s disclaimer
of opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion in respect of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls
relevant to the Group’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
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As detailed in their auditor’s report dated 21 April 2008 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007 (the “former auditor’s report”),
the former auditor was unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate evidence to satisfy themselves as to whether
the financial statement items were fairly stated and free
from material misstatement in the following areas: (i)
deconsolidation of Jafoon Limited and its subsidiaries that
gave rise to a net loss of HK$16,061,000 recorded in the
year ended 31 December 2005; (ii) deconsolidation of Excel
Harvest Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries and Silver
Dragons Limited and its subsidiaries that gave rise to a
net gain of HK$11,716,000 recorded in the year ended 31
December 2006; and (iii) the carrying amount of the net
liabilities of Daiwah Company Limited and its subsidiaries
of HK$5,638,000 as at 31 December 2006 and the loss
for the year ended 31 December 2006 of HK$1,950,000.
Any adjustments found to be necessary would have had a
consequential effect on the net assets of the Group as at
31 December 2007, and of its result for the year ended 31
December 2007 and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.

As further explained in the former auditor’s report, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries (the “2007 Disposal Group”)
during the year ended 31 December 2007. The financial
position of the 2007 Disposal Group is presented in notes
29(b) and 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The
2007 Disposal Group comprises Jafoon Limited, Excel
Harvest Corporation Limited, Silver Dragons Limited, Daiwah
Company Limited and all their subsidiaries. The directors
of the Company at that time had no direct access to the
books and records of the 2007 Disposal Group as the
management of the 2007 Disposal Group declined to co-
operate with the Company and had not submitted sufficient

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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financial information to the Company. The former auditor was
unable to carry out alternative audit procedures to obtain
sufficient and appropriate evidence on the consolidated
financial statements of the 2007 Disposal Group for the
period from 1 January 2007 to 16 April 2007. Consequently,
they were unable to satisfy themselves as to whether the
value of the net assets disposed of by the Group as at the
date of disposal was fairly stated and correspondingly, the
loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$2,037,000 and the
gain on disposal of subsidiaries attributed to discontinued
operations of HK$4,499,000 arising thereon, the net inflow
of cash and cash equivalents of HK$50,000 in respect of
the disposal of subsidiaries and net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents of HK$779,000 in respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries attributed to discontinued operations. Any
adjustment found to be necessary to the above amounts
would affect the amounts recorded in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 in respect
of the 2007 Disposal Group up to the date of disposal,
with corresponding effect on the amounts recorded in the
consolidated cash flow statement and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

As a result of the limitation of audit scope in the areas as
described above, the former auditor was unable to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

As detailed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group disposed of Quick Treasure Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “2008 Disposal Group”) during the
year ended 31 December 2008. Because we were appointed
as auditor of the Company after the date of the disposal,
we were not able to perform sufficient audit procedures,
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BASIS FOR CURRENT YEAR’S DISCLAIMER
OF OPINION (Continued)

including obtaining explanations from the management
of the 2008 Disposal Group, on which we could rely on
for the purpose of our audit, on the 2008 Disposal Group
covering the period from 1 January 2008 up to the date of
disposal. There were no other satisfactory alternative audit
procedures that we could adopt to satisfy ourselves that
the loss for the year from discontinued operations of the
2008 Disposal Group of HK$139,640,000 was fairly stated.
Any adjustments found to be necessary would affect the
Group’s income and expenses and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters
described in the basis for current year’s disclaimer of opinion
paragraph, we do not express an opinion on the financial
statements as to whether they give a true and fair view
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2008 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2008 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET T
(Restated)
(E31))
Continuing operations BREREEL
Revenue = 32 5 15,386 17,726
Cost of sales $HE R (4,925) (5,164)
Gross profit EH 10,461 12,562
Other income H Ath g A 7 389 2,602
Selling and distribution $HE KD
expenses gl (44) (164)
Administrative expenses TH X (21,268) (24,939)
Other expenses H 13 (47) (5,755)
Net (loss) gain arising from "EMENFE
change in fair value of e (BE)
investment properties e F58 (950) 3,340
Loss on disposal of HEWNER A
subsidiaries Z &8 - (2,037)
Finance costs B 7% & 10 (2) (321)
Loss before tax BRIEAIEE (11,461) (14,712)
Income tax expense ISyl 11 (660) (603)
Loss for the year from RBKEED
continuing operations ZFEEE (12,121) (15,315)
Discontinued operations RIS ETE
Loss for the year from BRI TS
discontinued operations 2 FEEE 12 (135,389) (20,355)
Loss for the year NFE E 18 13 (147,510) (35,670)
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET T
(Restated)
(E3%1))
Attributable to: AR AL FEAh
Equity holders of RARIERFEEA
the Company (147,510) (35,463)
Minority interests DEIR R - (207)
(147,510) (35,670)
Loss per share SREE
From continuing and KA R E TS
discontinued operations RO IFAE & E T
Basic AR 14 HK(10.25) centsi& L HK(6.68) centsi& Il
From continuing operations KEFFEAEE TS
Basic HK 14 HK(0.84) centsiB 1l HK(2.85) centsi& 1l

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008




At 31 December 2008
—EREN\FT-A=+—H

2008 2007
—TT)\F —EELF
Notes HK$ 000 HK$’000
e FHET THET
Non-current assets IEMENE B
Property, plant and N
equipment B 15 727 126,656
Investment properties "REWE 16 18,680 19,630
Earnest money HE e 17 56,689 =
76,096 146,286
Current assets MBNEE
Inventories FE 18 137 1,096
Trade receivables, EUE SR
prepayments and AR HIE R
other deposits Hihize 19 1,581 5,335
Bank balances and cash FR1T1 i¥?2iﬂiﬂi 20 20,757 44,459
22,475 50,890
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables, accruals, JETE SERFK
other deposits EFtEE -
and receipt in advance HEfbize RIEWFRIE 21 6,015 19,132
Provision for onerous contract B E& L& 21 2,555 =
Amounts due to minority ENKMB AR Z
shareholders of a DB R
subsidiary KIB 22 1,160 1,160
Taxation payable JEAS R IE 2,302 1,425
12,032 21,717
Net current assets MENEEFE 10,443 29,173
Total assets less current BEBER
liabilities mENBE 86,539 175,459
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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At 31 December 2008
—TTEN\F+=A=1+—H

2008 2007
ZET)N\F ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B FHET FHET
Capital and reserves [ A K 4
Share capital A A 23 73,450 12,242
Share premium and reserves B 10 B & s 12,351 162,281
Total equity RS 85,801 174,523
Non-current liabilities EmBEBE
Deferred taxation IRERIE 25 738 936
86,539 175,459

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 118
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 12 March 2009 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Pan Sutong &# &
Director £%F

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Gompany

ARTERHEARE
Share Share  Translation Capital  Contributed Accumulated Minority
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total interests Total

58
B BGME  REEE  AEE  WABR  BREE & WREE o
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
THT TR e TeL Ten  Ten  Ten  Ten AR

At 1 January 2007 H-BB+5-F-R 4081 A (3416) 3 0216 (01435 134,648 207 134,855
Released upon disposal of REERBARRER

subsidiaries - - 3,416 (31) 693 - 4,078 - 4,078
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - S 5469 (35469 Qo7 (3,670)
Total recognised income ERERAMARFR AT

and expense for the year - - 3,416 (31) 693 (35,463) (31,385) (207) (31,592)
Shares Issued BEARA 8,161 65,289 - - - - 73,450 - 73,450
Transaction costs attributable ERHBERAHA

to issue of shares - (2,190) - - - - (2,190) - (2,190)
At 31 December 2007 RoERLF+-R=1-H 12242 86,370 - - 200809 (126898 174,523 - 17458
Loss for the year, representing ~ AEEER @ BIAER

total recognised loss BREAGELE

for the year - - - - - (147510)  (147,510) - (147,510
Shares issued (Note 23) BRIk (H3) 61,208 - - - - - 61,208 - 61,208
Transaction costs attributable EROBEREHA

to issue of shares - (2,420) - - - - (2,420) - (2,420)
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\ETZA=1-A 73,450 83,950 - - 202,809 (274,408) 85,801 - 86,801

EZBEEERERAQ A 43
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

2008 2007
ZETNE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Operating activities BEER
Loss before tax BREiAIE (146,747) (35,067)
Adjustments for: fEH T FIF
Interest income MEWA (163) (2,529)
Finance costs NHER 2 321
Depreciation of property, plant MmE - BBRER
and equipment & 4,888 5,073
Gain on disposal of HEDRIEEEER
discontinued operations Z W - (4,564)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZEE - 2,037
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME  BERZE
plant and equipment ZE#E 41 5,006
Impairment loss on property, ME - B RE
plant and equipment ZREBE 58,528 -
Net loss (gain) arising from REMERTE
change in fair value 2BEE
of investment properties (W) 358 950 (3,340)
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERE - 455
Impairment loss on deposits EERERE 6 300
Gain arising from change in fair RHIEEE LMES
value of listed securities held AFEEE
for trading FES 2 Wi (74) (80)
Operating cash flows before HEETEHH 2
movements in working capital LEHENE (82,569) (32,388)
Decrease in inventories FERD 959 995
Decrease (increase) in trade ERE KT - BRTER
receivables, prepayments and Hioemd (5m)
other deposits 887 (7,494)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables, ENESER - EifEE
accruals, other deposits and Hitke &ﬁﬂﬁlmlﬁ/
receipt in advance/provision BEAHBEECRL)EM
for onerous contract (5,181) 17,021
Decrease in of listed securities HEBE FMEHHD
held for trading 74 80
Net cash used in operations RefmAzie 8 (85,830) (21,786)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBENEH (84) (85)

Fortuna International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

2008 2007
—TTN\F —TTtHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEL TET
Net cash used in operating activities &L EBHMA R FE (85,914) (21,871)
Investing activities REED
Interest received BUFIE 163 2,529
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REFEHE 224 5
Purchase of property, plant and BEEME KR
equipment P& (204) (296)
Earnest money paid BE#HES (56,689) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries G0N 28 - (127,295)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 29 59,932 (729)
Net cash from (used in) BEEBEL(FR)
investing activities LR FH 3,426 (125,786)
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from issue of new shares  Z{T# R 3708 61,208 73,450
Expenses on issue of new shares HRAETS (2,420) (2,190)
Interest paid RENEUESS ) (321)
Net cash from financing activities RETHMELE RS FE 58,786 70,939
Net decrease in cash RekReE
and cash equivalents W FE (23,702) (76,718)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzH&R
at 1 January BeEE 44,459 121,177
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+-A=+—-H2
at 31 December, represented ReRkFeEE
by bank balances and cash AMRTEFELRRS 20,757 44,459

REERKEERAT gp
—RENEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information

of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 35.

As explained in note 12, the cruise and cruise-related
operation and the business of trading in glass eel are
classified as discontinued operations for the year ended
31 December 2008. The comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements have been restated
and the restated segment information, together with the
trading of wine products and artwork design business
which were disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2007 were represented, as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2007

accordingly.

In addition, the comparative figures of packing and
handling income generated from the trading of glass
eel segment, amounting to HK$2,909,000, has been
reclassified from the Group’s revenue to other income

so as to conform with current year’s presentation.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFEAN  REBEEHRMN NI BEES
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) SRR e([EEestMag ) BmZEE
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BSET RZBE(FHEEUBHmEER]) -
Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are or have become
effective.
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of BRI EAFERL  eREE
(Amendments) Financial Assets BBIBREER LEHNDE
FTHR(EFTAR)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and BE(ERMKER BERBRELER
Treasury Share ZEBZE®) £2% : RER
Transactions ZEE1H EERHR 5
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession BB (BRI BER TR R L HE
Arrangements ZBZEE)
BEE12%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit B75 (BB R 4R BB R ERIZ19% :
on a Defined ZEBZE®) REBNEERE -
Benefit Asset, REE14% REEEEXRRME
Minimum Funding Z AR
Requirements and
their Interaction
The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect KB AV B G ER AR TE
on how the results and financial position for the current FTEECc EERTBRRA 2 BERENTT
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and NI EEKEATE - A - BALHBET
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment BAMEIME L A2 -

has been required.

FRuBREBERAE 47
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

A B ELEATRA B BAERRE
MR RAEERT R BRIk iE -

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that

have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to BB I 15 S 42 R BB FHRE
HKFRSs' CCHEN), R 2 B!

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of BASFTERZE1% U E &)
Financial Statements? (&1E3T) 2 7R72

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs? BB ERE235 EERA?

(&1&35T)

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and BAGFENE27H  HREREL
Separate Financial (#423]) B 7 ¥Rk <
Statements®

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial BEAGHEREIR AHEEMIA

(Amendments) Instruments and NEREACCHIE) MBBES

Obligations Arising Z B F?

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

on Liquidation?
Eligible hedged items?®

ARG ERIE 395

(1BETA) HAS®
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment FEMBHREER R— KB
(Amendments) in a Subsidiary, F1R & NCIIEE]
Jointly Controlled BB EL g1
Entity or Associate? EPYEAC IR i Al/NC] o
1 & P A2
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions BB I 15 42 R BEEEGR
and Cancellations? FE25% (BRI A) FEEH2
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business BB I 15 42 R ¥Ba 0t
Combinations® E35% (&1EET)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures BB I 15 S 42 R EHEemIA
about Financial FET79 (BRI A) I 5 2 P2
Instruments?
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BB RS 4R & IE 5 Ep2
F 85k

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net

Investment in a
Foreign Operation®
HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of
Non-cash Assets to
Owners?®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets
from Customers®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS
5, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 October 2008

@ Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

&7 (B BR B #5 1 ¥
2EZE®)
2135

&7 (BIFR B 5 [ ¥R
2EZE®)
BEE155]

&7 (B BR B 5 1 ¥
2EZE®)
BEE 1657

&7 (B i 5 [ ¥R
2EZE®)
BEE17R

&7 (B BR B #5 1 ¥
2EZE®)
21857

7l

7l

7l

7l

BPAHEEN

B ERE G

IR A

B B e

KIFREEE
DIRTHEB A

BEFEEBES

T OERRZZEEAF A —BENUE
Mz FEMME  EFEMBRSE
ZHESRZEFTAERAR-_FFN
FEA-BAINEFHBZFEBHE

2 ERR-TTAF-A-—BIE-MNUE

Fts 2 FEHHE

¢ ERAR-TEEAFLA-BZAE

Fts 2 FEHHE

fOERAR-TEENFLA-BHAE

Fts 2 FEHHE

© EAR-FTNFTA-BRRE

Fts 2 FEHHE

© EAR-FTNAFLA-BARMNE

ZHE%

ERBBREEERA A

—RENEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest

in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values and in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The principal accounting policies adopted are as
follows:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members
of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and service provided in the normal
course of business, net of discount.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the

goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Rental income from properties under operating leases
is recognised on a straight line basis over the period
of the relevant leases.

EFRMZEZSABERNOT ¢

EMBREREBRBEARARIEECE
AM%A VZBBHEK - WARAHE
BEG —REB M B RELHE - AR
HRE) T RNz - AR REAIESRE -

?E”E 5u}

L

FABARELZMBARXERO AR
WREERASEFABEEREE XA ML
(BERBIME )T ALRE WERA ©

MBARZMBRENATEZIBR TEL
HE REHEARREAREEMKE
NEIFAERAE - -

FMESEEARRIERS
HERGAKRBEREH -

VR AR

BEBNRDRAEBEREZ R FER
B DERABERBBRETHESmRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Revenue from room rental, food and beverage sales and
other ancillary services on the cruise liner are recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

Rental income from gaming hall in the cruise liner,
which represents a percentage of net profit generated
by the lessee, is recognised as income in the periods
in which it is earned.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment, excluding crockery,
utensils and linens, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of those
items over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight line method.

Initial expenditure incurred for crockery, utensils and
linens is capitalised and no depreciation is provided
thereon. The cost of subsequent replacement for
these items is recognised in profit or loss as and

when incurred.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in the consolidated income statement
in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated income statement
in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

¥ HEMIBREREERAEHLS
FERZEERHITEEATMWAREER
HERRILER BERKLIERARELZME
sk B R (IR% A B 2 h B IRF
BIREERZEZEAE)NZAR R ILHE
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REMEDFHERBRES R IEAFAE
ZME -

RERERR  REMERKATE 8
BREREREGEXH  RERERE &
BMERBATFERAZEAFEFE -
BRENEAVTEEHELEZBANAEL
HMZBHEA -

BREMERINHERSIEREYFRKATD
BEAXEMLEMEIEELERREE
MERRIEER REULBRZEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Effective interest method (Continued)
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL represent financial

assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets held for trading are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows have been impacted.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period granted and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. If, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated income statement
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment
loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the
consolidated income statement.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a HEBEARET eMBAERRATA -
group entity are classified according to the substance BRI L2 AL EReREBERR
of the contractual arrangements entered into and RTEZERDHE -

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences AT HABARNEEEEFSGER (KN
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after BREMBEAR) ZEMELD -

deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method BBRFIE %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating BERMNEELEFEeRBE ZHEEK AR
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating SERBBBAEANERZ 2%  ZERF
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective KSR A EZ AT RKMT RS TS
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated AE AR SR (RERAE)RN 28
future cash payments through the expected life of WA= o

the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest B X R ER A AR -

basis.

Financial liabilities EHEE

Financial liabilities, including trade payables and amounts CRHABERRERNESIERAREMKHEBA
due to former minority shareholders of a subsidiary, AIZAI D EREFTIE - DREZFIAER
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using PSR BN AT ER ©

the effective interest method.

Equity instruments RATA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded RARETZRAT EZLB WS KIBEN
on the proceeds received, net of direct issued costs. PREFEITHRAALR

EEEBRXEERAA g
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Onerous contracts represent certain lease contracts
where unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits
generated from it. Provisions for onerous contracts are
calculated based on the difference between the benefits
arising from the lease and minimum lease payable by
the Group under the contract. The present obligation
under the contract is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred taxation
is charged or credited to the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred

taxation is also dealt with in equity.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date,
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Payments to the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme which is a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan are charged as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Impairment loss for estimated irrecoverable amounts
are recognised in profit and loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment is required, the
Group takes into consideration the ageing status and
the likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for trade receivables that are unlikely to be
collected. Where the future actual collection is different
from expected, a material adjustment may arise. As
at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of trade
receivable was HK$87,000 (2007: HK$1,295,000),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,044,000
(2007: HK$1,044,000).

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Revenue represents revenue arising on trading of BEEBENFTFENEZTERARAR HalK
glass eel, rental income, income from operation of A UARRB LB R EBmAE A
restaurant and cruise and cruise-related operation for B2 EEE AEERAFEZHEL
the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the BEBRERIIEEEBEEB 2O
year, for both continuing and discontinued operations, N

is as follows:

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
SRR BRILEE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“EE\E —EEtE -ZIN\E -—Z2TLE -—EE\E —ZTTLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEL TEL FEL FEL TEr FEL

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E51) (&5) (&5)

Trading of glass eel EEERAR - - 37,658 46,309 37,658 46,309

Trading of wine products HEE S - = - 1,152 - 1,152

Gross rentals from REREMF

investment properties i ok 899 771 - - 899 771

Operation of restaurants REEE 14,487 16,955 - - 14,487 16,955
Cruise and cruise-related o N H51HE

operation % - - 29,628 21,192 29,628 21,192

15,386 17,726 67,286 68,653 82,672 86,379

REERKEERAT go
—RENEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

During the year, the Group discontinued the cruise and
cruise-related operation by way of disposal of Quick
Treasure Investments Limited and its subsidiaries and

ceased the business of trading in glass eel.

The Group is currently engaged in two main business
segments, namely property investment and operation
of restaurant. These segments are the basis on which

the Group reports its primary segment information.

RAFERN - AEBEEQuick Treasure
Investments Limited & £ [} & 2 & M &
IEH R R BRBAEY  URIECEEER
emAEER -

AEEBRMREMRAIBEXZB DA - Y
ERENREER - ZE0MNHAKHIE
BETRDEHER 2 EHE -

Business segments EY SN
2008 —TENF
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FEREEE BRIEEEETH
Cruise and
Property Operation of cruise-related  Trading of
investment  restaurant ~ Sub-total  operation glass eel  Sub-total Consolidated
Bak#n EEEA
NERE KEEE PNt HEEHR A NG &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FAT TAT TAT TAT FAT FAET
Segment revenue:  DEEEE
Sales to external HETIERP
customers 899 14,487 15,386 29,628 37,658 67,286 82,672
Segment results DHEE (654) (2,297) (2,951)  (139,646) 4,323 (135,323)  (138,274)
Interest income F 2 HA 126 37 163
Other unallocated ~ EARHE ZIWA
income 165 - 165
Unallocated bl i
expenses (8,799) - (8,799)
Finance costs HBER (2) - (2)
Loss before tax B AIER (11,461) (135,286)  (146,747)
Income tax expense  FEHFZ (660) (103) (763)
Loss for the year rEEER (12,121) (135,389)  (147,510)

6 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Business segments E SN
2008 (Continued) ZEENFE (&)
Continuing operations
Property Operation of
investment restaurant Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T FE T
Segment assets DEEE 18,834 1,708 20,542
Unallocated assets Aol EE 78,029
98,571
Segment liabilities HEPEE 188 6,114 6,302
Unallocated liabilities KOz EE 6,468
12,770

ExzBEEEABRQA 67
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

BHE-_ZT)\F+_A=+—HBILFE

Business segments E SN
2008 (Continued) ZEENFE (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HELEER BRILEE X
Cruise and
Property  Operation of cruise-related Trading of
investment restaurant operation glass eel  Consolidated
Wiy R B EEEA
NERE LEZE il ey BE e
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FHT THL THT
Other segment information: HEwnHEs
Depreciation il 37 320 4,511 20 4,888
Deposits written off REME 6 - - - 6
Operating lease expenses BERNRY - 4,849* 465 18 5,332°
Unallocated amounts KAEZEH 844
6,176
Capital expenditure ERRX 125 75 4 - 204
Impairment loss on property, %% * #ERR
plant and equipment REER - - 58,528 - 58,628
Loss on disposal of property, — HEWE  BER
plant and equipment SEEE - 41 - - 41
* Included in the amount is provision for onerous * TREBPIEAES KR E2,555,000%

contract of HK$2,555,000.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

Business segments E SN
2007 —TELEF
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HEREER BRIHEEXH
Cruise and
Operation cruise-
Property of Trading  Artwork Trading of  related Con-

investment restaurants  Sub-total ~ of wine  design  glass eel operation Sub-fotal  solidated
g BEER BRRdR

nERE 2B Nt OEEES  EWRG BE RERH Nt R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Thr Tar TEr  ThAr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(831) (23)) (&) (&)
Segment revenue: PHEEE:

Sales to external customers HETHHEP 771 1695 17,726 1,152 - 46309 21,192 68,653 86,379
Segment results PHEE 2213 (1617)  (5,344) (67) - 2903 (28,091) (25255) (30,599)
Interest income FEMA 2,193 336 2529
Other unallocated income AR ZHA 148 = 148
Unallocated expenses AT (9,351) - (9,351)
Finance costs BHER (321) - (321)
(Loss) gain on disposal HENBARZ

of subsidiaries (BB (2,037) 49 4145 - - 4564 2527
Loss before tax RHEEE (14,712) (20,355)  (35,067)
Income tax expense AEHRZ (603) - (603)
Loss for the year AEEEE (15,315) (20,355)  (35,670)

EZBEEERERAQ A 69
—EENEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Business segments
2007 (Continued)

Continuing operations

XEDE
—EFLF(E)

Discontinued operations

BELERTH BRIEBEER
Cruise
and cruise-
Property Operation of Trading Artwork Trading related Con-
investment  restaurants of wine design of glass eel  operation solidated
- B  BE#R BRRDE
NERE KEEE  BEEES  EWRA BE  HEEH &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TER TET FHT
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(E51) (F5)) (Z5) (Z5) (Z5))
Segment assets NHEE 19,758 2,294 = = 342 129,931 152,325
Unallocated assets AP EZEE 44,851
197,176
Segment liabilites A HEE 153 4,056 - - 6,316 8,276 18,801
Unallocated liabilities  RAEZ B & 3,852
22,653
Other segment EthAHER
information:
Depreciation & 12 1,461 4 - 118 3,449 5,044
Unallocated amounts A2 EZ &8 29
5,073
Deposits written off  E&MER 62 - - - - - 62
Unallocated amounts A2 B2 &% 238
300
Operating lease BEHNRR
expenses - 3,999 58 - 108 249 4,414
Unallocated amounts A2 E 2 £ 8 678
5,092
Capital expenditure ~ BAFE = 272 = = 14 5 291
Unallocated amounts A2 EZ &8 5
296
Impairment loss HEREESR
on goodwill - 449 - - 6 - 455
Loss on disposal of ~ HEWE -
properties, plant Rt BE
and equipment - 5,006 - - - = 5,006

7 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_ZT)\F+_A=1+—HBHILFE

In presenting information on the basis of geographical

segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical

location of customers except for cruise-related operation

where segment revenue is based on where the services

were rendered to customers. Segment assets and

capital expenditure are based on the geographical

location of the assets.

SRR D B E B - BRES AR RS
ZOMEERBNEBERAEPREHARE 2
RSN B B E X BORBER T M
BEE - DHEERELAHAXEBNEE
FIT Bz [ 35K ©

2008 2007

ZEINE ZETtE

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total ~ operations  operations Total

bt BRI W& BEIE
BEXl  BEXH At BEXE  BEXR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TR TiEn T TiEn
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
(Z51) (E3) (E5])

REVENUE ¢ 3

International waters Bk - 29,628 29,628 - 21,192 21,192
Hong Kong Bk 15,386 37,658 53,044 17,726 47,461 65,187
15,386 67,286 82,672 17,726 68,653 86,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

BHE-_ZT)\F+_A=+—HBILFE

2008
—TTNE
Continuing  Discontinued

2007
ZTTLE
Continuing  Discontinued

operations  operations Total ~ operations  operations Total

R B R BRI
BEXH  BEXH ait BEXR  BEXK At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TATL TATL TET TET TATL
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Z5) (&3]) (&31)

CARRYING AMOUNT PTHEEREE
OF SEGMENT ASSETS
International waters Bl K - - - - 129,931 129,931
Hong Kong Bk 20,542 - 20,542 22,052 342 22,394
20,542 - 20,542 22,052 130,273 162,325
2008 2007

ZEEN\E ZETLE

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total ~ operations  operations Total

& BRI K& BRI
BEXH  BEXH ait BEXR  BEXK aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TATL TATL TET TET TAT
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
(Z5) (Z51) (31)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE FERERRX
DURING THE YEAR

International waters Gill9) $e) - 4 4 - 5 5
Hong Kong Bk 200 - 200 212 14 286
200 4 204 272 19 291

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Consolidated
BEEEEK BRILEEEHE ga
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

SER\E  CRREE CRRN\F CRRE CIINE CERME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAm  TRn  TEr  TET TR

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&31) (&7) (E51)

Bank interest income RITFEHA 41 2,193 37 336 78 2,529

Other interest income Et S WA 85 S - = 85 S
Gain arising from change in fair ~ H{EEELTESATE

value of listed securities held EHRMEL N

for trading 74 80 - = 74 80

Others £t 189 329 4,429 3,075 4618 3,404

389 2,602 4,466 3,411 4,855 6,013

REEREEERAT 74
—RENEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENKEREARRSESZMESIT ¢
of the Company were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2008
BE-TT\FHoA=t-BLEE
Contribution
Salaries  to retirement

Directors’ and other benefit
fees benefits schemes Total

e RN
EEHe  REMER ATEIHR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FET FHET
Pan Sutong EERE - - - -
Du Peng il - - - -
Wang Zhixiong T - - - -
Wong Hau Yan, Helvin B5ZE - - - -
Wong Ching Ping, Alex FIEF - 750 3 753
Wong Tak Chung, Andrew HER - 467 12 479
Zhou Dengchao [A% - - - -
Huang Xiaojian HER - - - -
Hon Qin = - - - -
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco BEE 120 - - 120
Tang Yiu Wing KR 120 - - 120
Hui Wai Man, Shirley TEH 120 - - 120
360 1,217 15 1,692

7 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

Year ended 31 December 2007
BE-_TTt+E+-RA=1—-BItEE
Contribution

Salaries  to retirement

Directors’ and other benefit
fees benefits schemes Total

¥ RIKEA
E2He  RAMER STEIHR Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT AT AT AL
Wong Ching Ping, Alex TIEF - 575 3 578
Wong Tak Chung, Andrew =ER - 382 11 393
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco BEHE 120 - - 120
Tang Yiu Wing KR 120 - - 120
Hui Wai Man, Shirley FEH 120 - - 120
360 957 14 1,331
During the year, none of the directors have waived FRN - BEESEHERDNESHE(ZZZ
the directors’ emoluments (2007: None). None of the +F &) BIEEEFEIMAKEBEIMA

directors have received any inducement pay for joining REERARQ R MERFEAZES -

or upon joining the Group and the Company.

EZBEBEEBRERAQ A 75
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e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2007: one) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in
note 8 above. The emoluments of the remaining three

(2007: four) individuals were as follows:

AEBRUKSHFALY  BMUL(ZZTZL
F:()BARRZEE  REZHMEE
REXKES—HHE - RS =f(=FF
tF O ATZMENT

2008 2007
“EENE —EELEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Salaries and allowances e KOER 1,339 1,778
Contributions to retirement RARAEFIET B g 5K
benefit schemes 22 51
1,361 1,829
Their emoluments were within the following band: BEZHeERLT

No. of employees

1PN
2008 2007
“TINF s
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0—1,000,0007% 7T 3 4

None of the five highest paid individuals above have
received any inducement pay for joining or upon joining
the Group.

7 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BEEEEK BRIEEEEHE ha
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“FEN\F ZBTLE CETN\E ZFRLF ZFIN\E BRI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL AL AL TR TRL AL

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (&5]) (Z5])
Interest on margin accounts wholly ARLERZHEEZ
repayable within five years BEEPHE 2) (321) - - ) (321)
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
RERELH BRILBERK fFa
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“FEN\F ZEELE CETN\E Rt ZEI)\F BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAL TR TR TAL TAL

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (Z51) (Z51)
Current tax - Hong Kong REBE - BENEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year REEHE (117) (98) (109) - (220) (98)
(Under) overprovision e (BEIAR)
in prior years* BEEE (741) 7 - - (741) 7
(858) (1) (103) - (961) (21)
Deferred taxation BRI
Current year rEE 145 (582) - = 145 (582)
Attributable to a change REEZBmES
in tax rate 53 - - - 53 -
(660) (603) (108) - (763) (603)

EZBEEEBERAQ A 77
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The amount charged to year ended 31 December
2008 represents the underprovision of Hong
Kong Profits Tax in respect of certain deductible
interest expenses in prior years as a result of the
time apportionment basis finally agreed with the
Inland Revenue Department during the year.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the
year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated income statement

FABIA S 8RR A Wak 5% P 51 R B AT &S
BEERMT

as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before tax B 56 A 5 18
Continuing operations RERE T (11,461) (14,712)
Discontinued operations (Note 12) T4 &L (HizE12) (135,286) (20,355)
(146,747) (35,067)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits BB BFETEA6.5%7 50
Tax rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) BR(ZEZEEF  17.5%) 24,213 6,137
Tax effect of income not taxable BLERTL T 5 A
for tax purpose 2GR E 371 994
Tax effect of expenses not FLERFR T & Al HR AR
deductible for tax purpose 2RI BT E (24,222) (650)
(Under) overprovision in respect TEBRBERETRE)
of prior years BRER (741) 77
Tax effect of accelerated tax KRR NN R T TS B
allowance not recognised G E (61) (863)
Tax effect of tax losses REERTIAEE 2
not recognised Hsa (677) (6,823)
Tax effect of utilisation FABERERZ
of tax losses MIEEBE 2B T 2
not previously recognised 301 625
Effect on opening deferred FANET B F IR
taxation balances resulting EHIBERB TR
from decrease in tax rate
during the year 53 =
Tax charge for the year FARIERE (763) (603)

ERBBREEERA A 79

“EENFFRH



80

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

On 11 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Quick Treasure Investments
Limited (“Quick Treasure”) and the entire shareholder’s
loan due to the Group by Quick Treasure and its
subsidiaries (“Quick Treasure Group”) at a consideration
of approximately HK$62,734,000. Quick Treasure Group
held cruise and cruise-related operation of the Group.
The transaction was completed on 24 October 2008
on that date control of Quick Treasure Group was
passed to the acquirer. The loss for the year from
discontinued cruise and cruise-related operation was
HK$139,640,000.

At end of March 2008, due to the reallocation of financial
resources and changes in personnel, the Group ceased
the business of trading in glass eel. Accordingly, the
business segments of cruise and cruise-related operation
and trading of glass eel are classified as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
gain for the year from discontinued business in trading
of glass eel was HK$4,251,000.

On 2 March 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with Profit Leap International Limited, a company wholly-
owned by a director of Firstone Food and Beverage
Holdings Limited* to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of Firstone Enterprises Limited (“Firstone”) and the
entire shareholder’s loan due to the Group by Firstone
and its subsidiaries (“Firstone Group”) for a consideration
of HK$50,000. This disposal constituted a major and
connected transaction of the Company. Firstone was
an investment holding company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Its subsidiaries held various
operations of the Group, including the trading of wine
and artwork design business which were operated by
Firstone Corporate Limited and Daiwah Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Daiwah Group”), respectively. All
other subsidiaries of Firstone were either dormant or
investment holding companies. The transaction was
completed on 16 April 2007, on that date control of
Firstone Group was passed to the acquirer.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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e MBRRNE

RZZEZNFELA+T—H AEEHE—F
BYFE =R —BpE AAEHE D
£ Quick Treasure Investments Limited
(I'Quick Treasurel) 2 2 ZE FEITHA -
LA X Quick Treasure & H &8 2 7] ([ Quick
Treasures= B |) A X RN&E B 2 2 H KRR
B# - R{E#X A62,734,0007 7T ° Quick
Treasures= B 5 B AN & B s & B &y
HEEK - BERXRZIRN_ZFZENF+A
— 1+ B (BlQuick Treasuref: B z 12
EEZETFTRBHIER)ES K - BRI
e N B EEAEB cFEBEAR
139,640,000/8 7T, °

RZZEENF=ZAE HREFTALETH
BREAFES  AEBRERIEKEE
ERAAREL Bt BE_ZTENF
T_A=+—HBILFE  B&H NIRRT
ERLEERAARCELNIAREAR
RIMEEEK -ERIEKEESEARE
75 2 FE WS A4,251,0008 7T °

R-ZZTEE+E=HA=H  K&EEEProfit
Leap International Limited ( — & &
Firstone Food and Beverage Holdings
Limited*—ZEE2EHB 2 RREILIH
% LA &Firstone Enterprises Limited
([Firstone]) 2 &= &P 2 1T AX AN K Firstone
N H KB AR ([Firstonef= B |) fE{f A &
Erz2gREER  BEANEA50,000%8
Lo HEZHEERKAQRR —HEERBE
X5 o Firstone S —RERBRLZEHSF
MLz IREZER AR - ENBARFE
AEEZHER  BRAEESRENH
SR ZMIBEBHBHBEITERA
Al Daiwah Company Limited & £t /&
AT ([Daiwah& E |) & & ° FirstonefT A
HMMBE AR EREE XA ABREZERA
- AEXSRN —ZETLEMA+~B (A
Firstonef B v I HlEE T WE ST EH)
BEHETEM o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Accordingly, the comparative figures of the discontinued I EREREEB 2 RETELSE
operations have been restated and comprised of P - WREHG R BMRERES  EEE
the business segments of cruise and cruise-related AR BEBEIRENSTELELD
operation, trading of glass eel, trading of wine and #B o

artwork design business.

* Firstone Food and Beverage Holdings Limited is a * Firstone Food and Beverage Holdings
wholly-owned subsidiary of Firstone Enterprises Limited &Firstone Enterprises Limited
Limited. ZEEMBARAE -

The loss for the year from the discontinued operations ERIECEXEB 2 FEBEINAT ¢

is analysed as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEL THET
(Restated)
(E31))
Loss on discontinued BRIEEEEBL 2
operations after tax MEiigEE (135,389) (24,919)
Gain on disposal of HEERIEEEETR
discontinued operations Z Wz
(see Note 29) (R M5E29) - 4,564
(135,389) (20,355)

EZBEEEBERAQ A 81
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The results of the discontinued operations for the
period from 1 January 2008 to the effective dates of
disposals together with comparative figures, which have
been included in the consolidated income statement,
are as follows:

ERIEREEBH _TT/\F-—A—HE
EHEARERERE 2 ZEER L ERE

F(EERFEKERA)WT :

2008 2007

ZEENFE —ETLFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&%)

Revenue EER 67,286 68,653

Cost of sales S5 & P AR (95,529) (75,581)

Gross loss E8B (28,243) (6,928)

Other income H A 4,466 3,411

Selling and distribution expenses & KD sz H (5,541) (3,655)

Administrative expenses TB (28,016) (17,741)
Impairment loss on property, W - H2s KRR

plant and equipment REEE (58,528) =

Other expenses H b (19,424) (6)

Loss before tax bR Al & 1B (135,286) (24,919)

Income tax expense FMISHHEZ (103) =

Loss for the year REEEE (135,389) (24,919)

During the year, the companies comprising the
discontinued operations paid HK$79,773,000 (2007:
HK$20,933,000) in respect of the Group’s net operating
activities, contributed HK$255,000 (2007: HK$68,000)
in respect of net investing activities and contributed
HK$56,192,000 (2007: HK$23,453,000) in respect of

net financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
companies comprising the discontinued operations at

the dates of disposal are disclosed in note 29.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging RNEEBEBIDEMNGRGIA) TIEEEE
(crediting): JE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BFREERE BHIHEEEH e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“TT\F ZTRLE -TI\F ZTRLE -TT\F CBRLE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T ThT T T AL T

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (&5) (&51)
Depreciation for property, mE - WERERE
plant and equipment & 357 1,502 4,531 3,571 4,888 5,073
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 1,288 677 12 195 1,300 872
Net foreign exchange loss (gains) B &2 (Yi%) ¥4 310 = 2) (8) 308 (8)
Loss on disposal of property, — HEWE  BERLE
plant and equipment (included 2 &% (FINEMZ L)
in other expenses) 4 5,006 - = 41 5,006
Gross rental income from RERENF HE
investment properties LNt (899) (771) - - (899) (771)
Less: A
Direct operating expenses ERRBEEESUA
from investment properties LEENMECEE
that generated rental BERY
income during the year 143 191 - = 143 191
(756) (580) - - (756) (580)
Deposits written off (included K&
in other expenses) (BN H) 6 300 - - 6 300
Impairment loss on goodwill EERESE
(included in other expenses) (BIAERZI) - 449 - 6 - 455
Impairment loss on property, LENE  BRLRE
plant and equipment LREER - - 58,528 = 58,528 =
Staff costs, including directors’ BB
emoluments (Note 8) (aFEEZENS) (M8 7,236 8,377 17,677 11,202 24,913 19,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable PiIN/N
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based

on the following data:

AERERFEARGERELNER
TRBE T F IRt &

2008 2007
—ZTENF —ETLF
HK$ 000 HK$’000
T T
Loss for the purposes of ARt ESRER
basic loss per share BB 2 E1E
Loss for the year attributable to RAFIERFEA
equity holders of the Company E(REEEE (147,510) (35,463)
2008 2007
—ETNF —ETEF
000 ‘000
F A% T A%
(Restated)
(E7%1)
Number of shares f& 17 & B
Weighted average number of ARt EEREREER
ordinary shares for the purposes ZE BRI TS B
of basic loss per share 1,439,088 530,530
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for ARG ESREXRER IL%M%ii’:}

the purpose of basic loss per share has been adjusted
for the open offers to existing shareholders allotted on
23 July 2007 and 10 October 2008.
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Annual Report 2008

HERR - ZTTLFLA-t+=BR=
;ﬁ)\i—kﬁﬂ—ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁx%@ﬂﬁé‘ZAﬁ%
EEHAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Company is based on the following data:

ARAREEERFAEABGREFELE
¥z BREXREETIRE AT EUE M

s

2008 2007
ZEENF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss figures are calculated as follows: EEEFFEWT :
Loss for the year attributable to ARREREEAA
equity holders of the Company [ElEFEEE (147,510) (35,463)
Less: Loss for the year from B KRB BRI
discontinued operations BEKFEBR (135,389) (20,355)
Loss for the purposes of basic loss RAREFTEREFELE
per share from continuing operations %%z BREREE 2 EE (12,121) (15,108)

The denominator used is the same as those detailed above

for continuing and discontinued operations.

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is
HK9.41 cents per share (2007 restated: HK3.84 cents per
share), based on the loss for the year from the discontinued
operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$135,389,000 (2007 restated: HK$20,355,000)
and the denominators detailed above for continuing and
discontinued operations.

No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during either year 2007
and 2008.

Fﬁﬁéﬁﬁ ZABRER FXHBAELERBRE
I EE TSl & AR -

REERIEKEEB 2 BRERNEERA
BROMBIU(ZZEZLFEY: §R
3.84%1l) - IRBEARAALEBE=ITAE
ABEREERIEKEEB2FEER
$£135,389, ooo;‘%ﬁ(:%%tiiﬁur
20,355,000 7T ) Mt E - WEHA EX
E‘ﬁ—iﬂ*?&%‘%f%&aégii“‘**%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#
ZETEIZE -

ERE—FTLFER-_ZFFTN\EFEZEHH
3 ?E\’%E BREEEAER At
2 ERESEE -

ExEREEAERA A
—BE\EEH
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e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

86

Machinery Furniture Crockery,
and and Motor utensils
Cruise liner  equipment fixtures vehicles  and linens Total
. \ s RE L
By BERFE BRLREE RE RBHER @i
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TEL TEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
COST B
At 1 January 2007 “E5tF-A-H - 1,189 9,118 202 350 10,859
Additions AE - 24 268 - 4 296
Acquisition of subsidiaries KiEHBAR 121,000 3,520 4,488 - - 129,008
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBA - (222) (28) (49) - (299)
Disposals e = (119) (5,864) = (134) (6,117)
At 31 December 2007 “ZEtF+-f=1-H 121,000 4,392 7,082 153 220 133,747
At 1 January 2008 “TZN\5-A—-H 121,000 4,392 7,982 153 220 133,747
Additions NE - 29 175 - - 204
Disposal of subsidiaries = UN (121,000) (133) - - - (121,133
Disposals = - (447) (53) (153) - (653)
At 31 December 2008 “ZZ\F+-RA=1-H - 3,841 8,104 = 220 12,165
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION E3t#ERFE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2007 “E5+F-A-H - 388 2,918 85 - 3,391
Charge for the year FAZH 2,752 462 1,828 31 - 5,073
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (208) (10) (49) = (267)
Eliminated on disposals th & 85 - (36)  (1,070) - - (1,106)
At 31 December 2007 “TZ+E+-A=1-H 2,752 606 3,666 67 - 7,001
At 1 January 2008 “ZEN\E-A—H 2,752 606 3,666 67 - 7,091
Charge for the year ERTH 3,348 500 1,035 5 - 4,888
Impairment loss REEA 52,500 2,835 3,193 - - 58,528
Disposal of subsidiaries =N (58,600) (81) - - - (58,681)
Eliminated on disposals {1 A3 = (268) (48) (72) = (388)
At 31 December 2008 “EE\E+ZA=1—H - 3,592 7,846 = - 11,438
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2008 “EZN\E+ZA=1+-H - 249 258 = 220 727
At 31 December 2007 “EZ+F+-A=1+-H 118,248 3,786 4,316 86 220 126,656
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e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

FRBEBEYE  BBERREAERERT
SIFERFE

Cruise liner 5% by 5%
Machinery and equipment 20 - 33% g Rkt 20% —33%
Furniture and fixtures 20 - 25% RIMREE 20% —25%
Motor vehicles 20% it 20%

During the year, the Group made an impairment loss
of HK$52,500,000 on its cruise liner for the shortfall
of latest recoverable amount below carrying value of
the asset before the disposal of relevant subsidiaries.
The latest recoverable amount of the asset has been
determined on the basis of its fair value less costs to
sell, which is based on the valuation carried out by
Carmichael & Clarke Co. Ltd., an external professional
valuer. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
recent market transaction prices for cruise liners with
similar structures and conditions. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair value less costs to sell is higher than
the value in use.

FARN - BRELHEHRBNERFR B @
BE TN REBHEREERER -
BFLASERE BB EBKEESREEE
52,500,000/ T » & 2 & #1 Al W @ & 8
RERNTERBESKAEE - MHSKAR
R LASNEE = 22 (A R Carmichael & Clarke
Co. Ltd. 2 HEAEE - (HEHLEHEMU
EBREHEzBR  ROT SRS EERE
E-HKBREFEZER  ATFERBEEXNAE
BINEREREE -

HK$’'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2007 RZZZTLF—H—H 16,290
Increase in fair value recognised RIFEWERERZ AT
in the consolidated income statement B3 1 3,340
At 31 December 2007 RZEBEZELF+=-A=+—H 19,630
Net decrease in fair value recognised RIFEWERER AT
in the consolidated income statement Bk 55 (950)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H 18,680

RiuEREEERAA g7
BB N\EEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The investment properties of the Group comprise of:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

AEEZRENEBRE -
2008 2007
—EENF —EELE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT TAR

Land and buildings in Hong Kong fE&BRIEF HAELIFE

on medium-term leases 2 T REF
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2008 and 2007 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Dudley
Surveyors Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. The managing
director of Dudley Surveyors Limited is member of the
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties in the nearby
locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

At 31 December 2008, the amount represented an
earnest money of RMB50 million, which is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable to the Company
if no definitive agreement could be reached upon.
The amount was paid before the commencement of
the due diligence investigations for acquiring and/or
leasing an electronic factory in Guangzhou, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), with an independent
third party. The Group did not enter into any contract
with the counterparty up to the balance sheet date.
As described in note 33, the Group entered into a
conditional acquisition agreement on 4 February 2009
in relation to this proposed acquisition.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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Th2Z AP E AR AR 2 [R5 Y 330 5
2T RERL -

AEERBEEHOFTHERERENE
ERZZBAYZE#ED  GURAFERRN
FHE XD BRIEREME -
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mEMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

2008 2007

—ETNF —EEF

HK$ 000 HK$’000

FHETT FET

Finished goods BUPK 137 1,096
All inventories were stated at cost. FIEFEHYAKATIE -

2008 2007

—ETNF —ETF

HK$’'000 HK$’000

FHETT THET

Trade receivables U E 5 BR 3K 1,131 2,339

Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : RERERH (1,044) (1,044)

87 1,295

Prepayments and other deposits B FUIE M E ik 4 1,494 4,040

1,581 5,335
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
net of allowance for doubtful debts at the reporting
date:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

AT R EAEE R A R WE 5 AR (&
FRREREE ) 2 BRI D AT

2008 2007

—EENF —ETAF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET TET

Current to 1 month BNEiZ=—1E A 87 1,294
1 to 6 months — @A =/~ A - 1
87 1,295

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of 30 days, except for certain
well-established customers where the credit terms are
extended to 120 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. All of
the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the good credit rating under the Group’s
internal credit assessment.

In view of the aforementioned and that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of customers as at
31 December 2007 and the Group’s trade receivables
as at 31 December 2008 is insignificant, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables
are non-interest bearing.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of nil (2007:
HK$1,000) which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivable from the date credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. The directors
determined that there is no further allowance required
in excess of the current amount of allowance for
doubtful debts.

AEBZERE SRR EHRETARER
BAZT(ZZEZLF 11,0008 L) 2 B
R - RELZEFRAY 2SR KERES
GwmE - BASEEW AR ERESEEL
B WINMEBTERZSERITEE
] $K 18 d o

EETRAAHEEKE ZERRE - AL
EeZRERREEEERREEXEER
BHILMARKRESZRERZEEERRS
BEMEY EFRETEAERBEREE
IAINE — PR EE A -

2008 2007

—EENF —ETEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

Balance at beginning of the year G #]#5 & 1,044 1,510
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note) HENBRAR (M) - (466)
Balance at end of the year FIRIERR 1,044 1,044

Note: The allowance for doubtful debts was released upon
the disposal of subsidiaries.

The allowance for doubtful debts balance represents
several impaired trade receivables which have been in

severe financial difficulties.

BIaE : RERBEE L EHBE L RIRER -

RERBEREERKR Y HRETZIA
HERRE 2 R E 5 R o

EZBEEERERAQ A 91

—RENEEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Bank balances and cash comprise short-term bank
deposits and cash on hand. Bank deposits carry interest
at market rates which range from 0.7% to 3.605%
(2007: 1.4% to 5.25%) per annum.

BITREELRRESEEHRETERALFE
e  RITERZFBEEMSEERFE -
FERNRNF0.7EEIC05E(ZTE+F:
1.4EE5.25F) o

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT THET

Trade payables FERE SRR 499 7,121
Accruals and other EatEEREMES

deposits 4,710 5,932

Receipt in advance FEU TR I8 806 6,079

6,015 19,132

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at
the balance sheet date:

AT REME SRR

o

mERZERED

2008 2007

—EENF —ETAF

HK$ 000 HK$’000

FHET THET

Current to 3 months BNEAZ= =18 A 499 6,351
Over 6 months 7~ &8 A LA E - 770
499 7,121

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
14 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are within
the credit timeframe.

Provision for onerous contract represents provision for
unavoidable operating lease payment incurred under
a lease agreement from which no economic benefits
generated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The amounts due to minority shareholders of a B AR 2B RRIE A EIKE
subsidiary are unsecured, interest free and repayable G B RARERERTE -
on demand.
Number of shares Share capital
K& E A
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZZENE ZTEtE ZETNE 23R
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each HREE.02B T L BR

Authorised: ETE
At the beginning of the year RENREL
and at the end of the year 12,500,000,000 12,500,000,000 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At the beginning of the year REA] 612,081,819 204,027,273 12,242 4,081
Issue of new shares BTHR
(Notes a and b) GEZYG) 3,060,409,005 408,054,546 61,208 8,161
At the end of the year REEK 3,672,490,914 612,081,819 73,450 12,242
Preference shares of FREE100,00087T
HK$100,000 each ZBER
Authorised: Y
At the beginning of the year and RENREL
at the end of the year 500 500 50,000 50,000

EZBEEERERAQ A 93
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Notes:

(@  On 10 October 2008, the Company, by way of an open
offer to all existing shareholders, issued and allotted
3,060,409,095 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at
par to finance the Group’s working capital and future
investment funding. The new ordinary shares rank pari
passu with the existing shares in all respect. The share
issuing expenses of HK$2,420,000 are charged to the
share premium account for the year ended 31 December
2008.

(b)  On 23 July 2007, the Company, by way of an open offer to
all existing shareholders, issued and allotted 408,054,546
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each for consideration of
HK$0.18 per share to finance the Group’s acquisition of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2007.
The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respect. The premium, net of share issuing
expenses of HK$2,190,000, arising from the new issue
of HK$63,099,000 was credited to the share premium
account for the year ended 31 December 2007.

On 28 January 2004, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”). The purpose of the New Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder
for their contribution to the Group and/or enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of the
New Scheme include mainly the directors, employees,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, shareholders,
business partners and professional advisers of the
Company or any Invested Entity. The New Scheme
became effective on 29 January 2004 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the New Scheme is 61,208,181 shares, being an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
in issue of the Company at 3 October 2007, being
the date on which the shareholders of the Company
approving the refreshment of the limit in respect of the
granting of share options under the New Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each eligible participant in the New Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

EATE R AT B 2 FrE B AR M Al
BTz EERMNEE £61,208,181 K%
7 (REREETER)BENRAQAR
ZETELETA=ABIARARREIESE
NEBBRENEETEREZ LR 2H)
BETRMDZ10% - REM+=1@ A
M RRERETEITTHTESEER
S2HEZHZERMNDEE - HUAKRRQEFEM
HEEBETROZ1%ER - #—TE TR
BARSG 2 EREALCRKRERNRRAE L
HEAE o

BRTYARBEE TBRABHLETEMERK
BETMBBEALTZBERE  AFEKE
SIEMITEEHE o o - REM + Z{E
AHIE MARREZERRIBILIEATT
EXYREEMAPREA LR L ZEMER
BEBEARARNEMAKREEEHTRG
0.1%3k 42 [ (& & 85,000,000/ 7T (& 7
NABRMRELE R ZREE) AEX
RBRINBRR KRS B4t -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The offer of a grant of share option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, save that the period
commences on the date of which the offer is made
and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options subject
to any provisions of the New Scheme determining the
rights of the grantees.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There is no outstanding options remain un-exercised at
the beginning and at the end of the year. No options
were granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during
both years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-_A=1+—HBLLEE

The following are the major deferred taxation liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years:

REAFERBEFERAZENRLEREA

Accelerated Fair value
tax of investment

depreciation properties Total
DR A 75 B
e /NS ] HBEr
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZE+F—H—H 131 223 354
(Credited) charged to FR(FFA) BB
consolidated income iRE Wk
statement for the year (2) 584 582
At 31 December 2007 R-TELHF
+=ZA=+—8 129 807 936
Charged (credited) to FAMKR A (FGEA)
consolidated income ReER
statement for the year 12 (157) (145)
Effect of changes in tax rate MEREHTE (7) (46) (53)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF
+=ZA=+—8 134 604 738

At 31 December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$53,140,000 (2007: HK$162,435,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred
taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All tax losses do not expire under current

tax legislation.

RZZEENEFE+-_A=+—8 K&£EH
RE) A RIS B 18 4953,140,0008 o ( = F
T+ : 162,435,000/ 70) © A AR
R s F o BREEGET AR EF - Fit
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group represents the
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising amounts due to minority shareholders of a

subsidiary, issued share capital and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure regularly.
As a part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the
issued share capital and will balance the Group’s overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

redemption of existing or issue of new debt.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

AEEEEECNE R RS BERENRK
AigEm s BEHSRETE  BRASEA
CEBUNFBELE  RNESEMKER
7y [E1 3R ©

AEENEARBEEAQREDSFEA
FEfG 1 (B YR BT KT B A B 2 D 8RR K
R BBITRARER)

EEET RS EARE - (EARTH—
Mo EEEEZEESHRARD BHITR
AWBBERR  WEBSMNKRE - BITH
Bedn B BB B R (D A S B 3R B B IR K AT
HERRFEAREREEANRRE -

2008 2007
—EENF BT
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets CREE

Loans and receivables B3R K R 20,844 45,754

Financial liabilities HEEN A2
at amortised cost SREE 1,659 8,281
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
payables and amounts due to minority shareholders
of a subsidiary. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are consistently applied and
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The Group’s financial risk management
objectives and policies did not change between
years 2007 and 2008.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will
affect the Group’s financial results and its
cashflows. The directors consider that the
Group does not expose to significant foreign
currency risk as majority of its operations and
transactions are conducted in Hong Kong
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As
at balance sheet date, the Group did not
have significant foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities.

AEEZFIZcRMIABGERKES
B |/ITEFRAES  BNESEK
RN KB ARz D BRR IR
ERTAZABNEB ZMERE -
ZEeMTAZEBRREET SR
R(B®EREMNERAR) EERR
REERERR o BIKZERR 2K
ROEWMETELINTIX - EEEE
BRERAMER  HEREREAR
WETRERER - NEBEZMBE AR
EEAEMHERR _TTLFE_F
TN\FEL ELE -

E¥

B ERERIMNEEREFHM
BAEEMBEERERER
EEREZRAR EFERRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Interest rate risk

The directors consider that the Group does
not expose to any significant interest rate
risk as its bank balances mainly represent
demand deposits in banks.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international

credit-rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit ratings, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk in view of its trade receivables
as at 31 December 2007 consist of a large
number of customers and trade receivables

as at 31 December 2008 is insignificant.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, all the
Group’s financial liabilities are non-interest
bearing and their remaining contractual
maturities are within 60 days after balance
sheet date.

BERREASEEFRZZ
RMRTZRBDESZEEET
RSN R _FELF+
A=+—HEZRUEREHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair

values.

On 21 March 2007, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Gold Venture Corporation
Limited for cash consideration of HK$321,000. Gold
Venture Corporation Limited principally engaged in
provision of administrative services. It contributed nil
to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$2,133,000 to
the Group’s loss for the period between the date of
acquisition and 31 December 2007.

On 21 March 2007, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Sinostate Properties Limited for
HK$3 cash consideration. Sinostate Properties Limited
principally engaged as a tenancy agreement signing
agent. It contributed nil to the Group’s revenue and loss
of HK$7,000 to the Group’s loss for the period between
the date of acquisition and 31 December 2007.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILLEE

RZBEE+ENAZTNE  NEFEKE
Quick TreasureZ#E BEITIRA - HEMK
& %129,028,000/% 7T ° Quick Treasure
SEXELeBHABHABEL - B
BAHPE-_TTLtF+-_A=+—HIH
MR EAASEEXERAEEEES
Al & B 21,192,000/ 7T & & #828,074,000
BT o RIEKEEUEEERTE -

On 29 June 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Quick Treasure for cash consideration of
HK$129,028,000. The Quick Treasure Group principally
engaged in cruise and cruise-related operation. It
contributed HK$21,192,000 to the Group’s revenue
and loss of HK$28,074,000 to the Group’s loss for
the period between the date of acquisition and 31
December 2007. The acquisition had been accounted

for using the purchase method.

Gold Venture  Sinostate
Corporation  Properties
Limited Limited Quick Treasure Group 2007
RN PRER
BRAE  BRLFE Quick Treasuref£E ZETtE
Carrying Carrying
amount/ amount/ Carrying  Fair value Fair Total
fair value®  fair value* amount  adjustment value  fair value
REE/ KEE/ ATE
NYE* R¥E RAfE BE RYE  BRTE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TRAL TR TAL TAL TREL TAL

Net assets acquired: FkEEETE -
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% + BERZE 75 - 127,788 1,145 128,933 129,008
Inventories 3t - - 1,784 - 1,784 1,784
Trade receivables and deposits ~ EREFEFH RS 246 - 4,857 - 4,857 5,103
Bank balances and cash BOEERRS - - 2,054 - 2,054 2,054
Trade and other payables VB R REAM
EfRE - - (8,600) - (8,600) (8,600)
Total consideration, BRE  DBReXf
satisfied by cash 321 - 129,028 129,349
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition is as follow:

BRAWBMEL B REFEET

HK$’'000

T T

Cash consideration (129,349)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired  FTIEIR & MRS Z(E 2,054
(127,295)

* The directors determined that the carrying value
of net assets acquired before combination are
reasonably approximate their fair value at the date of

acquisition.

It is not possible to estimate the amount that the above
subsidiaries would have contributed to the loss of the
Group had the acquisition taken place at the beginning
of the year as the above subsidiaries has a different
year end and different accounting policies. The cost of

preparing such information would be excessive.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

As explained in note 12, the Group disposed the

cruise and cruise-related operation and ceased

its trading of glass eel during the year. The net

liabilities of Quick Treasure Group together with

other subsidiaries at the dates of disposal were

as follows:

@ BE-TF\F+-A=+-A

BUK 12T E  AEERTFR
HE e RBRARCEER - WK
LEESEAAERER NEERHE
Quick Treasures BEREMHIE A

Az Al

FEMT -

Net liabilities disposed of: T & B EFE -
Quick Treasure Other
Group subsidiary Total
Quick Treasure£ & Hi B A a] A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET
Property, plant and equipment % - BE R RE 62,452 - 62,452
Trade and other receivables BB 5 Bk 50 I E At B U ROR 2,861 = 2,861
Bank balances and cash BOEERRS 2,802 - 2,802
Trade and other payables B 2R R A B FR (5,381) = (5,381)
Amount due to immediate R ERERARRE
holding company (157,133) (152) (1567,285)
(94,399) (152) (94,551)
Assignment of amount BEENBEEERARFE
due to immediate
holding company 157,133 152 157,285
62,734 - 62,734
Loss on disposal of HEMB AR 2 BE
subsidiaries - - -
Total consideration - by cash BRGRE 62,734 = 62,734

FaEREEEAERD A
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(a) For the year ended 31 December 2008 (a) BEZTZENF+ZA=FT—HLHF
(Continued) E (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and BERHENBAR(BEERIE&EE
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of ¥B) 2R RRSEBRAFED
subsidiaries, including discontinued operations, MR -

is as follows:

Discontinued Other

operations subsidiary Total

BRIEEEXER HaMBAR =

HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000

T T TAT FHT

Cash consideration BERE 62,734 — 62,734
Cash and bank balances FTHER 4 RIR1TATF

disposed of (2,802) - (2,802)

59,932 - 59,932
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(b)

For year ended 31 December 2007

As explained in note 12, the Group discontinued the

operations of trading of wine and artwork design

business at the time of the disposal of Firstone

Group. The net liabilities of Firstone Corporate

Limited (operating business of trading in wine)

and Daiwah Group (operating artwork design

EHE+_A=+—HLFE

AN EI2PrEE - AKERGLE

Firstonef

e

& EMTR

B gL R 5 RS R
aES R

BEITHR QA (K&

- /Eiﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%)&Daiwahﬁ B (5
STER) (BRERLE

pos
MR

BIREMHBARNEERHZE

business), constituting discontinued operations, BEFEAT
and other subsidiaries at the date of disposal
were as follows:
Net liabilities disposed of: FrtEBEFEEE
Firstone  Discontinued
Daiwah Corporate operations Other
Group Limited (sub-total) subsidiaries Total
Daiwah BRI BHHEE Hf
&8 ARAR EB0NG) HEAR ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TR TATL TATL
Property, plant and equipment 1% - &Rk - 32 32 - 32
Trade and other receivables W E SR RE M ERTE - 631 631 13,955 14,586
Inventories FE - 448 448 = 448
Cash and bank balances BERROER 38 741 779 - 779
Trades and other payables ENESKS &ﬁWéﬁ (4,180) (2,240) (6,420) (15,977) (22,397)
Amount due to immediate ERERERARANE
holding company - - - (433,832) (433,832)
Tax liabilities HEgE (3) - (3) - 3)
(4,145) (388) (4,533) (435,854) (440,387)
Release of capital reserve BHEREE - (31) (31) - (31)
Release of exchange BHERLERE
fluctuation reserve - - - 3,416 3,416
Release of contributed surplus ~ BEL AR - - - 693 693
Assignment of amount due to BEENERERAR
immediate holding company - - - 433,832 433,832
(4,145) (419) (4,564) 2,087 (2.477)
Gain on disposal of MEBRIHEEEE  WE
discontinued operations 4,145 419 4,564 - 4,564
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBARZE#E - - - (2,087) (2,087)
Total consideration - by cash BRERE - - - 50 50
ExBEEERBRA

“EENFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HBILLEE

(b) For year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued) (b) (ECET LT+ A=t+—HIEFE
(%)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and EAHENBAR(BEERIELE
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of ¥B) 2 Re kRS EBARLFED
subsidiaries, including discontinued operations, MR -

is as follows:

Discontinued Other
operations  subsidiaries Total
B4 1k EAh
K TS N EPNE] =T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
T T FAT FHET
Cash consideration BeRE - 50 50
Cash and bank balances FTHERE R
disposed of RITHET (779) - (779)
(779) 50 (729)
2008 2007
ZEENF —EE+F
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHETT FHET
Minimum lease payments £ AAE **5FEZ’JIET
under operating leases Z&EEE

during the year* 6,176 5,092
* Included in the minimum lease payments under operating * FRELEHNBE T2 BB R2ET
leases during the year, there is provision for onerous ARFEEERREZBRBEORE

contract of HK$2,555,000 (2007: nil) charged to the 2,555,000 (=TT LF : F)

consolidated income statement for the year.
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At 31 December 2008, the Group had commitments for RZZEZNA+ZA=+—8 " AKEIR
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B A) RS A & A 4 0 T B HA R B BR s A
operating leases which fall due as follows: ZARREIEBLNFEERT -
2008 2007
—TENE B T I
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year —FA 4,658 4,516
In the second to FEEERF
fifth year inclusive (BiEERME) 8,246 9,862
12,904 14,378
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by KEMAONFTERNEEERE TYEME
the Group for certain properties. Leases are negotiated MziHe HOBHBEREEAFEIE M
for terms ranging from two to six years and rentals are WHANHSHEFTTE REBEE_STLF
fixed over the lease terms. The comparative figures of +—A=+—HLEFE AEEHK —HEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments are B 2 DR HUGE & B M A = BR F ER
restated since the Group accrued the lease payable EERMAES Bt RRKERDFR
for the remaining non-cancellable operating lease BIZHEBREFTELED -

period of a restaurant closed during the year ended
31 December 2007.

FaEREEEAERD A
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Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$899,000 (2007: HK$771,000). All of the properties
held have committed tenants for the next two years.

FANATUER 2 2 S WA 5899,000/5 7T
(ZZFZ L4 : 771,0000870) - NEB
BZ2HMERREMFHYERBERS -

At 31 December 2008, the Group had contracted RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H ' A5EE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease LTI R R KRB FKET LA 4
payments:
2008 2007
ZET)N\F ZETLF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHE T
Within one year —FR 948 484
In the second to F_EEFRF
fifth year inclusive (BIEERME) 976 =
1,924 484

Until the effective date of disposal of Quick Treasure
Group, the Group had contracted with the casino
operator in respect of leasing the gaming hall on the
cruise liner. Rental income earned during the period was
HK$17,989,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
HK$33,626,000). The lease agreement shall continue
until it is terminated by either party serving on the
other party one month’s written notice of termination.
Contingent rental based on a percentage of net profit

of the casino operation.

1 10 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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2008 2007
—EENF —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of 2] A(ERREEA B 1E
the acquisition of property, WERABE)EER
plants and equipments I - 2R R
contracted for but not provided ZEARLTH
in the consolidated
financial statements - 43

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes the
lower of 5% of the relevant payroll costs or HK$1,000
per employee to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of HK$427,000 (2007: HK$489,000) represents
contributions payable to this scheme by the Group in

respect of the current accounting period.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 January
2009, an independent third party agreed to subscribe
for 122,000,000 new shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.027 per share. The net
proceeds from the subscription after deducting expenses
of approximately HK$3,284,000 were used as general

working capital for the Group.

AEERMEREREERBRFIMERTE
TRREFFTE - FFEBEEFHNE X
ABERZzZES BAKEZEEDRRE
B AEEREREEREEL Z X
HEREEFH M 25%=%1000/8 T (ARK
ERE) MEBTAELEREMR -

A W RN 2 AR K B427,00078
(ZZEZ 4 :489,00087m) " T
& [ gf 7K & 5 29 9 A A% 5T & R A 2 it

o

P ol

BE_ZETENF—ANBILZRER
EH O RBYE-FTRAEERRBEER
0.0277% 7T REA A F122,000,0000% 37
B - REBEEMEFIEFEEHNRAX
1% )49 43,284,0008 7T * EREASE 2
—REEES -

ExEREEARAF
—BENEEH
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On 4 February 2009, the Group entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement with an independent third party
pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest in Favor Mega Group Limited (“Favor”)
and its outstanding debt owing to its shareholders at a
consideration of HK$400 million (subject to adjustments).
Favor is an investment holding company holding
the entire paid-up registered capital of Guangzhou
SingularGold Electronics Co., Ltd., which is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC and
principally engaged in the processing of printed circuit
boards mainly for telecommunication and multi-media
products. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 12 February 2009.
As the transaction has not yet been completed before
the date these financial statements are approved for
issuance, the directors consider that it is impracticable
to quantify the amounts recognised at the acquisition
date for each class of the acquiree’s assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities, if any.

The Company has in its announcement dated 12 February
2009 announced that it proposed to effect:

(@) a capital organisation plan (the “Capital
Reorganisation”) by way of:

(i)  the consolidation of every 40 existing shares
of HK$0.02 each into 1 consolidated share
of HK$0.80 each;

(i)  the reduction of the issued share capital
of the Company through a cancellation of
the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.70 on each of the issued
consolidated shares such that the nominal
value of each issued consolidated share will
be reduced from HK$0.80 to HK$0.10;

1 12 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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ENDE
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(a)

(i)

(iv)

the subdivision of each authorised but
unissued consolidated share of HK$0.80
each (including the unissued consolidated
shares arising from the capital reduction)
into 8 new shares of HK$0.10 each such
that immediately after the subdivision, the
total number of issued new shares will be
approximately 94,862,272 on the assumption
that there is no change in the issued share
capital prior to the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective;

the transfer of the credit arising from the
capital reduction to the contributed surplus

account of the Company;

the application of the contributed surplus
account of the Company to offset against
the entire balance of the accumulated losses;
and

the increase in the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$250,000,000
divided into 2,500,000,000 new shares
to HK$5,000,000,000 divided
50,000,000,000 new shares by the creation
of an additional 47,500,000,000 new shares;
and

into

subject to the Capital Reorganisation becoming

effective, the Company proposed to raise

approximately HK$572.0 million before expenses
by issuing 853,760,448 rights shares at the rights
issue price of HK$0.67 per rights share on the

basis of 9 rights shares for every 1 new share

held by existing shareholders.

(@)

(o)

(iii)

(vi)

1% & I M {B0.80/8 JT Z & E
BRETEHRN(2ERAH
WIRAN M E A 2 REITE R
M) FHA A N\KREREEO0.10
BT 2R BERND A
% BENKRAEZHRSEBR
RARBBETRALELS) -
BB BT BB A
94,862,272/

75 Bl AR AN BT EE A 2 S BRI
ARBZBABBRIK

BAARR R Z AR HKEH
REBR 2GS - R

i 18 B8 HMNE 5% 47,500,000,000
BEFRHD AR ZERE
% AN §5250,000,0005% 7T (2
£2,500,000,0008% %7 f% 17 ) 1%
%5,000,000,00078 7T( 5 #f &
50,000,000,0000&# i3 ) K&

FRAEHENE - AAREZRRR
ERREFE —RFTRMHERENR
AR AR 1D 2 B IR AR B T AR AR AR
15 0.677%8 7L 17853,760,448 % it i%

B tn

% & #)572,000,0007% JT( &

RRFIST) -

ExEREEAERAF
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Based on the number of the issued shares of the
Company on 12 February 2009, the fractional
shares will be constituted upon the aforesaid Capital

Reorganization.

In order to avoid the fractional shares, the Company
repurchased 34 ordinary shares of the Company through
the Stock Exchange for a consideration of HK$0.019
per share and subsequently cancelled all the 34 ordinary
shares of the Company on 20 February 2009.

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in note 8.
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Name of subsidiary

HEBLRLR

Preciseworth
Investments Limited

Sky Path Limited

Glory Hero Corporation
Limited
RERRATF

Main Benefit Limited

Lion Castle Limited

Victory Bright Holdings
Limited

Pacific Glory Holdings
Limited

Cheerford Corporation
Limited

*RBRAA

Place of
incorporation
and
operations
Rl
B

British Virgin
Islands

RERTES
British Virgin
[slands
EERAHS
Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

Bk

British Virgin
[slands

EERAHS

British Virgin
Islands

EERTES

British Virgin
[slands

EREXES

Hong Kong

&R

Paid-up

issued share
capital/Class

of share held
BETARRAE/
PSR 2l

US$1
ordinary share
1ETEBR

US$1
ordinary share

1ETERR

HK$2
ordinary shares
BT ERR

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B ERR

US$1
ordinary share

1ETLERR

US$

ordinary share
1ETERR
US$100

ordinary shares
100 T & AR

HK$2
ordinary shares

2B EBR

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

Principal activities

ARAMRERREADL IERK
Directly Indirectly
BE &
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENF ZTTtHE ZZFET\F ZTTLF
% % % %
- 100 100 - Securities trading
EFEE
- = 100 100 Investment holding
RERK
- - 100 100 Property holding
ESE
- - 100 100 Property holding
NER
- 100 100 - Investment holding
RERK
100 = - - Investment holding
RE R
- - 80 80  Investment holding
RELR
- - 80 80  Tenancy agreement

signing agent of
fellow subsidiary

RRZWERRZ
HEmEEES
RE

ExEREEAERAF
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Place of
incorporation
and
Name of subsidiary operations
R
MEARAR e
Grand Allied Profits British Virgin
Limited Islands
EBRAES
Quick Treasure British Virgin
Investments Limited Islands
EBANES
Ever Discovery Limited  British Virgin
Islands
RBRAES
Everjoyce Limited Hong Kong
EEERRA B
Golden Princess Cruise  Hong Kong
Limited
ERTHBRARAA B
Harbour Assets Limited  British Virgin
Islands
RBRAES
Million Gain Group British Virgin
Limited Islands
ABRAES
Season Success Hong Kong
Investment Limited
BRREBRAA i

1 16 Fortuna International Holdings Limited
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Paid-up

issued share
capital/Class

of share held
BREIBRRA/
FriERGER

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

ARAMRBERRRA DL
Directly Indirectly
Ek %
2008 2007 2008 2007
“2S\F ZEEtf —EEN\F _FEtF
% % % %

US$1 - - 100 100
ordinary share
1XTEBR

US$10 - - - 100
ordinary shares
10X ERKR

US$1 - = - 100
ordinary share

1ETERR

HK$2 - - - 100
ordinary shares
AT ERR

HK$500,000 - = - 100
ordinary shares
500,000 T EBR

US$1 - - - 100
ordinary share

1ETLERR

US$1 - - - 100
ordinary share
1ETEBR

HK$1 - = - 100
ordinary share
BT ERR

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Provision of
administrative
services
REITBRSE
Port clearance agent
BOEARE
Provision of travel
agency service
RERTRERS
Cruise liner owner
B A
Investment holding
REER
Cruiseliner operation

BRELEH
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Name of subsidiary

fit

INGIER

Fisherton Holdings

G

Fisherton International

G

Team Profit International

St

Limited

BkEEEERAF

Limited
JBXERRARAR

Limited
BHRBERAE

ate Empire Limited

Sincere Chance

i}

Crown Rate Investment

B

Enterprises Limited

BEXERAT

Limited
£REFRAA

Gold Venture

i

Corporation Limited

BHERAR

=l

Place of
incorporation
and
operations
MK K
B

Hong Kong

'R

Hong Kong

&t

Hong Kong

&g

British Virgin
Islands

RERARS

Hong Kong

&b
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

R

Paid-up

issued share
capital/Class
of share held

ERTARKRA/
F AR

HK$2
ordinary shares

2B ERR

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B ERK

HK$1

ordinary share
BT ERR
US$1

ordinary share
1ETERR

HK$1
ordinary share

TETEER
HKS 1

ordinary share
BT ERR

HK$2
ordinary shares

2B ERR

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

ARAMRREREAD L

Directly

2008
“EENE
%

H#
2007
- g
%

100

Principal activities

TEXK

Indirectly

3653
2008 2007
ZEEN\E ZETtE
% %

100 100 Tenancy agreement
signing agent of
fellow subsidiary

RRZMEAR 2
EREERERR

100 100 Trading of glass eel
EEERAHE

100 100 Property investment
NERE

100 100 Investment holding
RERR

100 - Provision of
administrative
services

RAETHRE

100 100 Operating Japanese

restaurant
ReRAEE

100 100 Provision of
administrative
services

RETTHRS

ExEREEAERAF
—BE\EEH
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at 31 December 2008.

EERR LRI ZAKEHBARR
HBASEXREREEBREATE - ME
ERR MEAEMHMBRARZFERS
RIEBRITE °

RZZENF+T_A=+—H  LdWE
NAEETEREBES °

2008 2007

—EENF —EE+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T T T T

Total assets BERLE 79,248 120,656

Total liabilities BEEE (2,745) (1,462)

76,503 119,194

Share capital fi&% A 73,450 12,242
Share premium f& 10 = B kA

and reserve 3,053 106,952

76,5083 119,194
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Location Purpose Floor area  Group's interest
o2 Jizk=s BHEEE REBE 2
sq.ft.
FHR

Flat C, 24/F, Village Tower, Residential 900 100%
No. 7 Village Road, Happy Valley, x=

Hong Kong

0

B 55 3 L A8 7 5%

WAt KE2418CE

Flat 12, 26/F, Apartment Tower, Residential 843 100%
Western Side Convention Plaza, =

No. 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

B

BT B 15

ERESAE

ERME26IE12F

8/F Lok Kui Industrial Building, Industrial 8,000 100%
Nos. 6-8 Hung To Road, T

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

JURE

RS EB6 =85

HEIXRNESE

EZBEEERERAQ A 119
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEENE ZTTLFE ZTETRF —TTHF —TTOEHF
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E5) (Z31) (E5)
RESULTS HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
E FAETL TAT TAEL TAEL TAEL
TURNOVER EED
Continuing operations FELEET 15,386 17,726 47,364 26,481 141,619
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER 67,286 68,653 3,813 258 2,475
82,672 86,379 51,177 26,739 144,094
Profit/(Loss) ARAIERFEA
attributable to equity EfEaH,/ (B1E)
holders of the company (147,510) (35,463) 73,426 (150,640) (50,682)
Minority interests DYRRE RS - (207) 128 179 103
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERF/(BR) (147,570) (35,670) 73,554  (150,461) (50,579)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—-H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZTENF ZTTLF ZITTRF —TTHFE —TI@EF
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
MINORITY INTERESTS (&351) (Z31) (&31) (E51)
EE - 8E8H HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DERRER FEL FTAEL FEL FHEL FEL
Total assets BERLE 98,571 197,176 154,471 95,255 307,422
Total liabilities AELE (12,770) (22,653) (19,616) (59,846)  (126,966)
Minority interests DERFE S - - (207) (179) (1,078)
85,801 174,523 134,648 35,230 179,378
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